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Part I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1.    Financial Statements.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share information)

July 1, 2022 October 1, 2021
(Unaudited)

ASSETS
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 1,102,284  $ 1,014,249 
Receivables and contract assets 3,303,279  3,101,418 
Prepaid expenses and other 148,592  176,228 

Total current assets 4,554,155  4,291,895 
Property, Equipment and Improvements, net 327,906  353,117 
Other Noncurrent Assets:

Goodwill 7,328,384  7,197,000 
Intangibles, net 1,472,641  1,565,758 
Deferred income tax assets 49,328  103,193 
Operating lease right-of-use assets 519,045  650,097 
Miscellaneous 470,751  471,549 

Total other noncurrent assets 9,840,149  9,987,597 
$ 14,722,210  $ 14,632,609 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Current maturities of long-term debt $ 51,630  $ 53,456 
Accounts payable 945,422  908,441 
Accrued liabilities 1,374,948  1,533,559 
Operating lease liability 155,760  172,414 
Contract liabilities 661,573  542,054 

Total current liabilities 3,189,333  3,209,924 
Long-term Debt 3,520,494  2,839,933 
Liabilities relating to defined benefit pension and retirement plans 314,975  418,080 
Deferred income tax liabilities 242,703  214,380 
Long-term operating lease liability 651,261  758,358 
Other deferred liabilities 158,511  559,375 
Commitments and Contingencies
Redeemable Noncontrolling interests 664,519  657,722 
Stockholders’ Equity:

Capital stock:
Preferred stock, $1 par value, authorized - 1,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding - none —  — 
Common stock, $1 par value, authorized - 240,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding - 127,577,542 shares and

128,892,540 shares as of July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021, respectively 127,578  128,893 
Additional paid-in capital 2,666,157  2,590,012 
Retained earnings 4,082,070  4,015,578 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (942,512) (794,442)

Total Jacobs stockholders’ equity 5,933,293  5,940,041 
Noncontrolling interests 47,121  34,796 

Total Group stockholders’ equity 5,980,414  5,974,837 
$ 14,722,210  $ 14,632,609 

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – Unaudited.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EARNINGS

Three and Nine Months Ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021
(In thousands, except per share information)

(Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021
Revenues $ 3,827,093  $ 3,576,436  $ 11,041,777  $ 10,506,144 
Direct cost of contracts (3,002,618) (2,759,501) (8,550,418) (8,290,137)
Gross profit 824,475  816,935  2,491,359  2,216,007 
Selling, general and administrative expenses (558,713) (553,189) (1,882,049) (1,779,435)
Operating Profit 265,762  263,746  609,310  436,572 
Other Income (Expense):

Interest income 1,042  1,001  2,924  2,733 
Interest expense (26,129) (20,011) (67,551) (52,788)
Miscellaneous income, net 31,440  38,658  51,802  138,705 

Total other income (expense), net 6,353  19,648  (12,825) 88,650 
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes 272,115  283,394  596,485  525,222 
Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations (59,491) (109,186) (121,545) (175,437)
Net Earnings of the Group from Continuing Operations 212,624  174,208  474,940  349,785 
Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued
Operations (343) 384  (576) 11,690 
Net Earnings of the Group 212,281  174,592  474,364  361,475 
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from
Continuing Operations (8,773) (9,182) (28,286) (29,366)
Net (Earnings) Loss Attributable to Redeemable
Noncontrolling interests (7,525) 384  (27,246) 101,776 
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Continuing
Operations 196,326  165,410  419,408  422,195 
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs $ 195,983  $ 165,794  $ 418,832  $ 433,885 
Net Earnings Per Share:

Basic Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 1.53  $ 0.83  $ 3.25  $ 2.80 
Basic Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per
Share $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 0.09 
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 1.53  $ 0.83  $ 3.25  $ 2.89 

Diluted Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per
Share $ 1.52  $ 0.82  $ 3.23  $ 2.78 
Diluted Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per
Share $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 0.09 
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 1.52  $ 0.83  $ 3.23  $ 2.87 

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Unaudited.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Three and Nine Months Ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended

July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021
Net Earnings of the Group $ 212,281  $ 174,592  $ 474,364  $ 361,475 
Other Comprehensive Income:

Foreign currency translation adjustment (187,841) (1,823) (242,353) 69,065 
Gain on cash flow hedges 9,440  (7,017) 64,786  24,170 
Change in pension and retiree medical plan liabilities 28,584  3,778  48,659  (14,085)
Other comprehensive income before taxes (149,817) (5,062) (128,908) 79,150 

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit:
Foreign currency translation adjustment 482  2,361  3,072  (8,675)
Cash flow hedges (4,115) 1,774  (19,350) (5,320)
Change in pension and retiree medical plan liabilities (688) (845) (2,884) (2,509)

Income Tax (Expense) Benefit: (4,321) 3,290  (19,162) (16,504)
Net other comprehensive (loss) income (154,138) (1,772) (148,070) 62,646 
Net Comprehensive Income of the Group 58,143  172,820  326,294  424,121 
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests (8,773) (9,182) (28,286) (29,366)
Net (Earnings) Loss Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling
interests (7,525) 384  (27,246) 101,776 
Net Comprehensive Income Attributable to Jacobs $ 41,845  $ 164,022  $ 270,762  $ 496,531 

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements - Unaudited.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Three Months Ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

Income (Loss)

Total Jacobs
Stockholders’

Equity
Noncontrolling

Interests

Total Group
Stockholders’

Equity
Balances at April 2, 2021 $ 130,172  $ 2,621,454  $ 4,125,452  $ (868,639) $ 6,008,439  $ 35,307  $ 6,043,746 

Net earnings —  —  165,794  —  165,794  9,182  174,976 
Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of deferred taxes
of $(2,361) —  —  —  538  538  —  538 
Pension liability, net of deferred
taxes of $845 —  —  —  2,933  2,933  —  2,933 
Gain on derivatives, net of
deferred taxes of $(1,774) —  —  —  (5,243) (5,243) —  (5,243)
Dividends —  —  (27,586) —  (27,586) —  (27,586)
Redeemable Noncontrolling
interests redemption value
adjustment to Common
Shareholders —  —  (17,487) —  (17,487) —  (17,487)
Noncontrolling interests -
distributions and other —  —  —  —  —  (10,778) (10,778)
Stock based compensation —  14,542  —  —  14,542  —  14,542 
Issuances of equity securities
including shares withheld for taxes 121  10,855  —  —  10,976  —  10,976 

Balances at July 2, 2021 $ 130,293  $ 2,646,851  $ 4,246,173  $ (870,411) $ 6,152,906  $ 33,711  $ 6,186,617 

Balances at April 1, 2022 $ 128,900  $ 2,667,256  $ 4,069,664  $ (788,374) $ 6,077,446  $ 44,532  $ 6,121,978 
Net earnings —  —  195,983  —  195,983  8,773  204,756 
Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of deferred taxes
of $(482) —  —  —  (187,359) (187,359) —  (187,359)
Pension liability, net of deferred
taxes of $688 —  —  —  27,896  27,896  —  27,896 
Gain on derivatives, net of
deferred taxes of $4,115 —  —  —  5,325  5,325  —  5,325 
Dividends —  —  (29,479) —  (29,479) —  (29,479)
Redeemable Noncontrolling
interests redemption value
adjustment —  —  20,169  —  20,169  —  20,169 
Repurchase and issuance of
redeemable noncontrolling
interests —  —  (5,147) —  (5,147) —  (5,147)
Noncontrolling interests -
distributions and other —  —  —  —  —  (6,184) (6,184)
Stock based compensation —  16,544  —  —  16,544  —  16,544 
Issuances of equity securities
including shares withheld for taxes 137  12,550  (63) —  12,624  —  12,624 
Repurchases of equity securities (1,459) (30,193) (169,057) —  (200,709) —  (200,709)

Balances at July 1, 2022 $ 127,578  $ 2,666,157  $ 4,082,070  $ (942,512) $ 5,933,293  $ 47,121  $ 5,980,414 

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – Unaudited.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

For the Nine Months Ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)

Common
Stock

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated
Other Comprehensive

Income (Loss)

Total Jacobs
Stockholders’

Equity
Noncontrolling

Interests

Total Group
Stockholders’

Equity
Balances at October 2, 2020 $ 129,748  $ 2,598,446  $ 4,020,575  $ (933,057) $ 5,815,712  $ 39,955  $ 5,855,667 

Net earnings —  —  433,885  —  433,885  29,366  463,251 
Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of deferred taxes
of $8,675 —  —  —  60,390  60,390  —  60,390 
Pension liability, net of deferred
taxes of $2,509 —  —  —  (16,594) (16,594) —  (16,594)
Gain on derivatives, net of
deferred taxes of $5,320 —  —  —  18,850  18,850  —  18,850 
Dividends —  —  (55,101) —  (55,101) (55,101)
Redeemable Noncontrolling
interests redemption value
adjustment to Common
Shareholders —  —  (124,725) —  (124,725) —  (124,725)
Noncontrolling interests -
distributions and other —  —  —  —  —  (35,610) (35,610)
Stock based compensation —  41,519  —  —  41,519  —  41,519 
Issuances of equity securities
including shares withheld for taxes 796  11,913  (8,790) —  3,919  —  3,919 
Repurchases of equity securities (251) (5,027) (19,671) —  (24,949) —  (24,949)

Balances at July 2, 2021 $ 130,293  $ 2,646,851  $ 4,246,173  $ (870,411) $ 6,152,906  $ 33,711  $ 6,186,617 

Balances at October 1, 2021 $ 128,893  $ 2,590,012  $ 4,015,578  $ (794,442) $ 5,940,041  $ 34,796  $ 5,974,837 
Net earnings —  —  418,832  —  418,832  28,286  447,118 
Foreign currency translation
adjustments, net of deferred taxes
of $(3,072) —  —  —  (239,281) (239,281) —  (239,281)
Pension liability, net of deferred
taxes of $2,884 —  —  —  45,775  45,775  —  45,775 
Gain on derivatives, net of
deferred taxes of $19,350 —  —  —  45,436  45,436  —  45,436 
Dividends —  —  (59,473) —  (59,473) —  (59,473)
Redeemable Noncontrolling
interests redemption value
adjustment —  —  (30,152) —  (30,152) —  (30,152)
Repurchase and issuance of
redeemable noncontrolling
interests —  —  2,614  —  2,614  —  2,614 
Noncontrolling interests -
distributions and other —  —  —  —  —  (15,961) (15,961)
Stock based compensation —  41,705  —  —  41,705  —  41,705 
Issuances of equity securities
including shares withheld for taxes 881  29,590  (11,966) —  18,505  —  18,505 
Repurchases of equity securities (2,196) 4,850  (253,363) —  (250,709) —  (250,709)

Balances at July 1, 2022 $ 127,578  $ 2,666,157  $ 4,082,070  $ (942,512) $ 5,933,293  $ 47,121  $ 5,980,414 
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See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – Unaudited.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Nine Months Ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021
(In thousands)

(Unaudited)
For the Nine Months Ended

July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:

Net earnings attributable to the Group $ 474,364  $ 361,475 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash flows provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization:

Property, equipment and improvements 77,921  74,484 
Intangible assets 146,889  103,308 

Gain on sale of ECR business —  (15,608)
Gain on investment in equity securities (13,862) (152,145)
Stock based compensation 41,705  41,519 
Equity in earnings of operating ventures, net of return on capital distributions 14,222  3,261 
(Gain) Loss on disposals of assets, net (4,762) 749 
Impairment of long-lived assets and equity method investment 74,585  40,138 

Deferred income taxes 62,144  38,419 
Changes in assets and liabilities, excluding the effects of businesses acquired:

Receivables and contract assets, net of contract liabilities (114,607) 231,992 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 28,963  47,202 
Miscellaneous other assets 119,238  107,911 
Accounts payable 54,422  (150,736)
Accrued liabilities (667,868) (158,772)
Other deferred liabilities (74,559) (44,985)

      Other, net (21,626) (4,639)
          Net cash provided by operating activities 197,169  523,573 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Additions to property and equipment (80,053) (65,670)
Disposals of property and equipment and other assets 9,286  468 
Capital contributions to equity investees, net of return of capital distributions 2,756  (4,193)
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash acquired (437,083) (1,741,062)
Disposal of investment in equity securities 13,862  52,021 
Proceeds related to sales of businesses —  36,360 
          Net cash used for investing activities (491,232) (1,722,076)

Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 2,513,000  3,365,315 
Repayments of long-term borrowings (1,707,490) (1,933,786)
Proceeds from short-term borrowings —  — 
Repayments of short-term borrowings (6,359) (7,675)
Debt issuance costs —  (2,747)
Proceeds from issuances of common stock 40,987  29,715 
Common stock repurchases (250,709) (24,949)
Taxes paid on vested restricted stock (28,574) (25,796)
Cash dividends to shareholders (86,588) (79,801)
Net (dividends) associated with noncontrolling interests (16,103) (40,083)
Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (46,074) — 
Proceeds from issuances of redeemable noncontrolling interests 49,738  — 

            Net cash provided by financing activities 461,828  1,280,193 
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes (79,919) 34,617 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash 87,846  116,307 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the Beginning of the Period 1,026,575  862,424 

Cash and Cash Equivalents, including Restricted Cash, at the End of the Period $ 1,114,421  $ 978,731 

See the accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements – Unaudited.
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Basis of Presentation

Unless the context otherwise requires:
• References herein to “Jacobs” are to Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and its predecessors;
• References herein to the “Company”, “we”, “us” or “our” are to Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries; and
• References herein to the “Group” are to the combined economic interests and activities of the Company and the persons and entities

holding noncontrolling interests in our consolidated subsidiaries.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and financial information included herein have been prepared pursuant to the interim
period reporting requirements of Form 10-Q. Consequently, certain information and note disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”) have been condensed or omitted. Readers of this
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q should also read our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto included in our Annual Report on Form 10-
K for the fiscal year ended October 1, 2021 (“2021 Form 10-K”).

In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements contain all adjustments (consisting of normal
recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair presentation of our consolidated financial statements at July 1, 2022, and for the three and nine month
periods ended July 1, 2022.

Our interim results of operations are not necessarily indicative of the results to be expected for the full fiscal year.

On February 4, 2022, the Company acquired StreetLight Data, Inc. ("StreetLight"). StreetLight is a pioneer of mobility analytics who uses its data
and machine learning resources to shed light on mobility and enable users to solve complex transportation problems. The Company paid total base
consideration of approximately $190.8 million in cash, and issued $0.9 million in equity and $5.2 million in in-the-money stock options to the former
owners of StreetLight. The Company also paid off StreetLight's debt of approximately $1.0 million simultaneously with the consummation of the
acquisition. The Company has recorded its preliminary purchase price allocation associated with the acquisition, which is summarized in Note 16- Other
Business Combinations.

On November 19, 2021, a subsidiary of Jacobs acquired all outstanding shares of common stock of BlackLynx, Inc. ("BlackLynx"), a provider of
high-performance software, to complement Jacobs' portfolio of cyber, intelligence and digital solutions. The Company paid total base consideration of
approximately $235.4 million in cash to the former owners of BlackLynx. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company also paid off BlackLynx's debt
of approximately $5.3 million simultaneously with the consummation of the acquisition. The Company has recorded its preliminary purchase price
allocation associated with the acquisition, which is summarized in Note 16- Other Business Combinations.

On March 2, 2021, Jacobs completed the strategic investment of a 65% interest in PA Consulting Group Limited ("PA Consulting"), a UK-based
leading innovation and transformation consulting firm. The total consideration paid by the Company was $1.7 billion, funded through cash on hand,
proceeds from a new term loan and draws on the Company's existing revolving credit facility. Further, in connection with the transaction, an additional
$261 million in investment proceeds had not yet been distributed at the investment date due to continuing employment requirements of associated
management owners. Consequently, this amount represented compensation expense incurred related to the investment that was expensed subsequent
to the date of the transaction, and was reflected in selling, general and administrative expense and cash from operations for the fiscal year ended
October 1, 2021. The remaining 35% interest was acquired by PA Consulting employees, whose redeemable noncontrolling interests had a fair value of
$582.4 million on the closing date, including subsequent purchase accounting adjustments. PA Consulting is accounted for as a consolidated subsidiary
and as a separate operating segment. See Note 15- PA Consulting Business Combination for more discussion on the investment and Note 12-
Borrowings for more discussion on the financing for the transaction.

On November 24, 2020, a subsidiary of Jacobs completed the acquisition of Buffalo Group, a leader in advanced cyber and intelligence
solutions, which allows Jacobs to further expand its cyber and intelligence solutions offerings to government clients. The Company paid total
consideration of $190.1 million, which was comprised of approximately $182.4 million in cash to the former owners of Buffalo Group and contingent
consideration of $7.7 million. The contingent consideration was subsequently recognized as an offset to selling, general and administrative expense
when it was determined no amounts would be paid. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company assumed the Buffalo Group's
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JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

debt of approximately $7.7 million. The Company repaid all of the assumed Buffalo Group debt by the end of the first fiscal quarter of 2021. The
Company has recorded its final purchase price allocation associated with the acquisition, which is summarized in Note 16- Other Business
Combinations.

On April 26, 2019, Jacobs completed the sale of its Energy, Chemicals and Resources ("ECR") business to Worley Limited ("Worley"), a
company incorporated in Australia, for a purchase price of $3.4 billion consisting of (i) $2.8 billion in cash plus (ii) 58.2 million ordinary shares of Worley,
subject to adjustments for changes in working capital and certain other items (the “ECR sale”). As a result of the ECR sale, substantially all ECR-related
assets and liabilities were sold (the "Disposal Group"). We determined that the Disposal Group should be reported as discontinued operations in
accordance with ASC 210-05, Discontinued Operations because their disposal represents a strategic shift that had a major effect on our operations and
financial results. As such, the financial results of the ECR business are reflected in our unaudited Consolidated Statements of Earnings as discontinued
operations for all periods presented. As of October 1, 2021, all of the ECR business to be sold under the terms of the ECR sale had been conveyed to
Worley and as such, no amounts remain held for sale. For further discussion, see Note 17- Sale of Energy, Chemicals and Resources ("ECR") Business
to the consolidated financial statements.

2.    Use of Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to employ estimates and make assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of certain assets and liabilities, the revenues and expenses reported for the periods covered by the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, and certain amounts disclosed in these Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. Although such estimates and assumptions
are based on management’s most recent assessment of the underlying facts and circumstances utilizing the most current information available and past
experience including considerations for potential impacts of the continuing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic, actual results could differ significantly
from those estimates and assumptions. Our estimates, judgments, and assumptions are evaluated periodically and adjusted accordingly.

Please refer to Note 2- Significant Accounting Policies of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our 2021 Form 10-K for a
discussion of other significant estimates and assumptions affecting our consolidated financial statements.

3.    Fair Value and Fair Value Measurements

Certain amounts included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented at fair value. Fair value is defined as the price
that would be received from selling an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the date fair value is
determined (the “measurement date”). When determining fair value, we consider the principal or most advantageous market in which we would transact,
and we consider only those assumptions we believe a typical market participant would consider when pricing an asset or liability. In measuring fair value,
we use the following inputs in the order of priority indicated:

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 - Observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets included in Level 1, such as (i) quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; (ii) quoted prices in markets that have insufficient volume or infrequent transactions (e.g., less active markets); and (iii) model-driven valuations
in which all significant inputs are observable or can be derived principally from, or corroborated with, observable market data for substantially the full
term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs to the valuation methodology that are significant to the fair value measurement.

Please refer to Note 2- Significant Accounting Policies of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in our 2021 Form 10-K for a more
complete discussion of the various items within the consolidated financial statements measured at fair value and the methods used to determine fair
value. Please also refer to Note 19- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for discussion regarding the Company's
derivative instruments.

The net carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and payables and short-term debt approximate fair value due to the
short-term nature of these instruments. See Note 12- Borrowings for a discussion of the fair value of long-term debt.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements relating to our business combinations are made primarily using Level 3 inputs including discounted cash flow and to
the extent applicable, Monte Carlo simulation techniques. Fair value for the identified intangible assets is generally estimated using inputs primarily for
the income approach using the multiple period excess earnings method and the relief from royalties method. The significant assumptions used in
estimating fair value include (i) revenue projections of the business, including profitability, (ii) attrition rates and (iii) the estimated discount rate that
reflects the level of risk associated with receiving future cash flows. Other personal property assets, such as furniture, fixtures and equipment, are valued
using the cost approach, which is based on replacement or reproduction costs of the asset less depreciation. The fair value of the contingent
consideration is estimated using a Monte Carlo simulation and the significant assumptions used include projections of revenues and probabilities of
meeting those projections. Key inputs to the valuation of the noncontrolling interests include projected cash flows and the expected volatility associated
with those cash flows.

4.    New Accounting Pronouncements

ASU 2020-04, Reference Rate Reform, (Topic 848): Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting is intended to
provide relief for entities impacted by reference rate reform and contains provisions and optional expedients designed to simplify requirements around
designation of hedging relationships, probability assessments of hedged forecasted transactions and accounting for modifications of contracts that refer
to LIBOR or other rates affected by reference rate reform. The guidance is elective and is effective on the date of issuance. ASU 2020-04 is applied
prospectively to contract modifications and as of the effective date for existing and new eligible hedging relationships. The guidance is temporary and will
generally not be applicable to contract modifications which occur after December 31, 2022. The adoption of the new guidance in the first quarter of fiscal
2022 allowed the Company to continue its British pound denominated interest rate hedge relationships which previously defined LIBOR as the
benchmark interest rate and in December 2021 were amended to replace LIBOR with the Sterling Overnight Index Average rate ("SONIA").

ASU No. 2021-08, Business Combinations (Topic 805): Accounting for Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities from Contracts with Customers, is
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022. ASU 2021-08 requires contract assets and contract liabilities (i.e., deferred revenue)
acquired in a business combination to be recognized and measured by the acquirer on the acquisition date in accordance with ASC 606, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers. Generally, this new guidance will result in the acquirer recognizing contract assets and contract liabilities at the same
amounts recorded by the acquiree. The Company adopted the new guidance in the first quarter of fiscal 2022 and the adoption had no impact on the
Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

5.    Revenue Accounting for Contracts

Disaggregation of Revenues
Our revenues are principally derived from contracts to provide a diverse range of technical, professional, and construction services to a large

number of industrial, commercial, and governmental clients. We provide a broad range of engineering, design, and architectural services; construction
and construction management services; operations and maintenance services; and technical, digital, process, scientific and systems consulting services.
We provide our services through offices and subsidiaries located primarily in North America, Europe, the Middle East, India, Australia, Africa, and Asia.
We provide our services under cost-reimbursable and fixed-price contracts. Our contracts are with many different customers in numerous industries.
Refer to Note 20- Segment Information for additional information on how we disaggregate our revenues by reportable segment.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

The following table further disaggregates our revenue by geographic area for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 (in
thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Revenues:
     United States $ 2,577,892  $ 2,364,034  $ 7,226,189  $ 7,295,818 
     Europe 862,011  881,676  2,666,219  2,277,670 
     Canada 74,509  57,866  206,701  167,181 
     Asia 35,741  28,309  104,361  84,364 
     India 30,761  18,915  81,753  49,926 
     Australia and New Zealand 172,926  174,828  532,228  472,013 
     Middle East and Africa 73,253  50,808  224,326  159,172 

Total $ 3,827,093  $ 3,576,436  $ 11,041,777  $ 10,506,144 

Contract Liabilities

Contract liabilities represent amounts billed to clients in excess of revenue recognized to date. Revenue recognized for the three and nine
months ended July 1, 2022 that was previously included in the contract liability balance on October 1, 2021 was $36.3 million and $407.3 million,
respectively. Revenue recognized for the three and nine months ended July 2, 2021 that was included in the contract liability balance on October 2, 2020
was $24.8 million and $380.4 million respectively.

Remaining Performance Obligation

The Company’s remaining performance obligations as of July 1, 2022 represent a measure of the total dollar value of work to be performed on
contracts awarded and in progress. The Company had approximately $14.4 billion in remaining performance obligations as of July 1, 2022. The
Company expects to recognize approximately 53% of our remaining performance obligations into revenue within the next twelve months and the
remaining 47% thereafter.

Although remaining performance obligations reflect business that is considered to be firm, cancellations, scope adjustments, foreign currency
exchange fluctuations or deferrals may occur that impact their volume or the expected timing of their recognition. Remaining performance obligations are
adjusted to reflect any known project cancellations, revisions to project scope and cost, foreign currency exchange fluctuations and project deferrals, as
appropriate.

6.     Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information

Basic and diluted earnings per share (“EPS”) are computed using the two-class method, which is an earnings allocation method that determines
EPS for common shares and participating securities. The undistributed earnings are allocated between common shares and participating securities as if
all earnings had been distributed during the period. Participating securities and common shares have equal rights to undistributed earnings. Net earnings
used for the purpose of determining basic and diluted EPS is determined by taking net earnings less earnings available to participating securities and the
preferred redeemable noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment associated with the PA Consulting transaction.

The following table reconciles the denominator used to compute basic EPS to the denominator used to compute diluted EPS for the three and
nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 (in thousands):
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Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Numerator for Basic and Diluted EPS:
Net earnings attributable to Jacobs from continuing operations $ 196,326  $ 165,410  $ 419,408  $ 422,195 
Preferred Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment
(See Note 15- PA Consulting Business Combination) —  (57,307) —  (57,307)
Net earnings from continuing operations allocated to common stock for
EPS calculation $ 196,326  $ 108,103  $ 419,408  $ 364,888 

Net (loss) earnings from discontinued operations allocated to common
stock for EPS calculation $ (343) $ 384  $ (576) $ 11,690 

Net earnings allocated to common stock for EPS calculation $ 195,983  $ 108,487  $ 418,832  $ 376,578 

Denominator for Basic and Diluted EPS:

Shares used for calculating basic EPS attributable to common stock 128,225  130,385  128,966  130,205 

Effect of dilutive securities:
Stock compensation plans 708  1,035  767  1,040 
Shares used for calculating diluted EPS attributable to common stock 128,933  131,420  129,733  131,245 

Net Earnings Per Share:
Basic Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 1.53  $ 0.83  $ 3.25  $ 2.80 
Basic Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 0.09 

Basic Earnings Per Share $ 1.53  $ 0.83  $ 3.25  $ 2.89 
Diluted Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 1.52  $ 0.82  $ 3.23  $ 2.78 
Diluted Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 0.09 

Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 1.52  $ 0.83  $ 3.23  $ 2.87 

Share Repurchases

On January 16, 2020, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of the Company's
common stock, to expire on January 15, 2023 (the "2020 Repurchase Authorization"). In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company initiated an
accelerated share repurchase program by advancing $250 million to a financial institution in a privately negotiated transaction, with final non-cash
settlement on the program during the first quarter of fiscal 2022 of 342,054 shares.

The following table summarizes the activity under the 2020 Repurchase Authorization through the third fiscal quarter of 2022:
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Amount Authorized
(2020 Repurchase

Authorization) Average Price Per Share (1) Total Shares Retired Shares Repurchased
$1,000,000,000 $135.56 2,196,484 2,196,484

As of July 1, 2022, the Company has $532.2 million remaining under the 2020 Repurchase Authorization.

Our share repurchase program does not obligate the Company to purchase any shares. Share repurchases may be executed through various
means including, without limitation, accelerated share repurchases, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, purchases pursuant to
Rule 10b5-1 plans or otherwise. The authorization for the share repurchase programs may be terminated, increased or decreased by the Company’s
Board of Directors in its discretion at any time. The timing, amount and manner of share repurchases may depend upon market conditions and
economic circumstances, availability of investment opportunities, the availability and costs of financing, currency fluctuations, the market price of the
Company's common stock, other uses of capital and other factors.

Dividends

On July 13, 2022, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $0.23 per share of the Company’s common stock to be
paid on August 26, 2022, to shareholders of record on the close of business on July 29, 2022. Future dividend declarations are subject to review and
approval by the Company’s Board of Directors. Dividends paid through the third fiscal quarter of 2022 and the preceding fiscal year are as follows:

Declaration Date Record Date Payment Date Cash Amount (per share)
April 28, 2022 May 27, 2022 June 24, 2022 $0.23
January 26, 2022 February 25, 2022 March 25, 2022 $0.23
September 23, 2021 October 15, 2021 October 29, 2021 $0.21
July 14, 2021 July 30, 2021 August 27, 2021 $0.21
April 22, 2021 May 28, 2021 June 25, 2021 $0.21
January 27, 2021 February 26, 2021 March 26, 2021 $0.21
September 17, 2020 October 2, 2020 October 30, 2020 $0.19

(1) Includes commissions paid and calculated at the average price per share
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7.    Goodwill and Intangibles

The carrying value of goodwill and appearing in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021 was as
follows (in thousands):

Critical Mission Solutions People & Places Solutions PA Consulting Total
Balance October 1, 2021 $ 2,550,631  $ 3,240,783  $ 1,405,586  $ 7,197,000 

Acquired 197,227  116,657  21,335  335,219 
Foreign currency translation (18,043) (29,688) (161,824) (209,555)
Post-Acquisition Adjustments —  —  5,720  5,720 

Balance July 1, 2022 $ 2,729,815  $ 3,327,752  $ 1,270,817  $ 7,328,384 

The following table provides certain information related to the Company’s acquired intangibles in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets at July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021 (in thousands):

Customer
Relationships,

Contracts and Backlog Developed Technology Trade Names Total
Balances October 1, 2021 $ 1,309,061  $ 40,020  $ 216,677  $ 1,565,758 

Amortization (131,324) (7,306) (8,259) (146,889)
Acquired 97,388  62,000  —  159,388 
Foreign currency translation (82,325) (628) (22,663) (105,616)

Balances July 1, 2022 $ 1,192,800  $ 94,086  $ 185,755  $ 1,472,641 

The following table presents estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for the remainder of fiscal 2022 and for the succeeding years.
The amounts below include preliminary amortization estimates for the Streetlight and BlackLynx opening balance sheet fair values that are still subject to
change.

Fiscal Year (in millions)
2022 $ 48.3 
2023 195.6 
2024 195.4 
2025 194.8 
2026 177.1 
Thereafter 661.4 

Total $ 1,472.6 
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8.    Receivables and Contract Assets

The following table presents the components of receivables and contract assets appearing in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets at
July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021, as well as certain other related information (in thousands):

July 1, 2022 October 1, 2021
Components of receivables and contract assets:

Amounts billed, net $ 1,417,578  $ 1,278,087 
Unbilled receivables and other 1,383,419  1,343,588 
Contract assets 502,282  479,743 
Total receivables and contract assets, net $ 3,303,279  $ 3,101,418 

Other information about receivables:
Amounts due from the United States federal government, included above, net of contract liabilities $ 786,980  $ 563,009 

Amounts billed, net consist of amounts invoiced to clients in accordance with the terms of our client contracts and are shown net of an allowance
for doubtful accounts. We anticipate that substantially all of such billed amounts will be collected over the next twelve months.

Unbilled receivables and other, which represent an unconditional right to payment subject only to the passage of time, are reclassified to
amounts billed when they are billed under the terms of the contract. We anticipate that substantially all of such unbilled amounts will be billed and
collected over the next twelve months.

Contract assets represent unbilled amounts where the right to payment is subject to more than merely the passage of time and includes
performance-based incentives and services that have been provided in advance of agreed contractual milestones. Contract assets are transferred to
unbilled receivables when the right to consideration becomes unconditional and are transferred to amounts billed upon invoicing.

9.     Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

The following table presents the Company's roll forward of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) after-tax as of July 1, 2022 (in
thousands):

Change in Net
Pension Obligation

Foreign Currency
Translation Adjustment Gain/(Loss) on Cash

Flow Hedges Total
Balance at October 1, 2021 $ (394,561) $ (407,240) $ 7,359  $ (794,442)
Other comprehensive income (loss) 45,775  (239,281) 40,355  (153,151)
Reclassifications from accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) —  —  5,081  5,081 
Balance at July 1, 2022 $ (348,786) $ (646,521) $ 52,795  $ (942,512)

(1) Included in the overall foreign currency translation adjustment for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 is $52.7 million and $90.5 million in unrealized gains (losses) on
long-term foreign currency denominated intercompany loans not anticipated to be settled in the foreseeable future.

(1)
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10.    Income Taxes

The Company’s effective tax rates from continuing operations for the three months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 were 21.9%
and 38.5%, respectively, with the decrease primarily due to the absence of a $30.8 million expense related to a change in tax rate applied to
deferred tax assets in the United Kingdom and certain nondeductible compensation related charges associated with the Company's PA
Consulting investment in the three months ended July 2, 2021, as well as a current period benefit of $9.1 million the Company recognized due
to the reversal of a withholding tax accrual on certain intercompany loans, partly offset by increases in permanent book/tax adjustments, state
taxes, and foreign inclusions for the three month period in fiscal 2022. Additionally, a $15.6 million payment was made during the current quarter
related to an amendment of an Australia tax return, which resulted in the removal of the associated uncertain tax position from the Consolidated
Balance Sheet. This payment had no impact on the current quarter income tax provision or effective tax rate.

The Company's effective tax rates from continuing operations for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 were 20.4% and
33.4%, respectively, with the decrease primarily due to a current year tax benefit of $15.4 million related to the release of valuation allowance on
foreign tax credits and $9.1 million related to the reversal of intercompany withholding tax noted above, as well as the absence of prior year
expenses related to the United Kingdom’s change in tax rate mentioned above and certain non-deductible pre-tax compensation charges
associated with our investment in PA Consulting, partly offset by the absence of the benefit from the change in the Company’s assertion about
indefinite reinvestment of certain foreign unremitted earnings in India in fiscal 2021.

The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to ongoing audits by tax jurisdictions around the world. In the normal course
of business, the Company is subject to examination by tax authorities throughout the world, including such major jurisdictions as Australia,
Canada, India, the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the United States. Our estimate of the potential outcome of any uncertain tax issue is
subject to our assessment of the relevant risks, facts, and circumstances existing at the time. The Company believes that it has adequately
provided for reasonably foreseeable outcomes related to these matters. However, future results may include favorable or unfavorable
adjustments to our estimated tax liabilities in the period the assessments are made or resolved, which may impact our effective tax rate.

11.    Joint Ventures, VIEs and Other Investments

We execute certain contracts jointly with third parties through various forms of joint ventures. Although the joint ventures own and hold the
contracts with the clients, the services required by the contracts are typically performed by us and our joint venture partners, or by other subcontractors
under subcontracting agreements with the joint ventures. Many of these joint ventures are formed for a specific project. The assets of our joint ventures
generally consist almost entirely of cash and receivables (representing amounts due from clients), and the liabilities of our joint ventures generally
consist almost entirely of amounts due to the joint venture partners (for services provided by the partners to the joint ventures under their individual
subcontracts) and other subcontractors. Many of the joint ventures are deemed to be variable interest entities (“VIE”) because they lack sufficient equity
to finance the activities of the joint venture.

The assets of a joint venture are restricted for use to the obligations of the particular joint venture and are not available for general operations of
the Company. Our risk of loss on these arrangements is usually shared with our partners. The liability of each partner is usually joint and several, which
means that each partner may become liable for the entire risk of loss on the project. Furthermore, on some of our projects, the Company has granted
guarantees that may encumber both our contracting subsidiary company and the Company for the entire risk of loss on the project. The Company is
unable to estimate the maximum potential amount of future payments that we could be required to make under outstanding performance guarantees
related to joint venture projects due to a number of factors, including but not limited to, the nature and extent of any contractual defaults by our joint
venture partners, resource availability, potential performance delays caused by the defaults, the location of the projects, and the terms of the related
contracts. Refer to Note 19 - Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for further discussion relating to performance
guarantees.

For consolidated joint ventures, the entire amount of the services performed, and the costs associated with these services, including the services
provided by the other joint venture partners, are included in the Company's results of operations. Likewise, the entire amount of each of the assets and
liabilities are included in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. For the consolidated VIEs, the carrying value of assets and liabilities was $359.0
million and $221.2 million, respectively, as of July 1, 2022 and $289.8 million and $220.8 million, respectively, as of October 1, 2021. There are no
consolidated VIEs that have debt or credit facilities.
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On March 2, 2021, Jacobs completed the strategic investment of a 65% interest in PA Consulting, a UK-based leading innovation and
transformation consulting firm. The remaining 35% interest was acquired by PA Consulting employees. PA Consulting is accounted for as a consolidated
subsidiary under U.S. GAAP accounting rules. See Note 15 - PA Consulting Business Combination for more discussion on the acquisition.

Unconsolidated joint ventures are accounted for under proportionate consolidation or the equity method. Proportionate consolidation is used for
joint ventures that include unincorporated legal entities and activities of the joint venture that are construction-related. For those joint ventures accounted
for under proportionate consolidation, only the Company’s pro rata share of assets, liabilities, revenue, and costs are included in the Company’s balance
sheet and results of operations.

For the proportionate consolidated VIEs, the carrying value of assets and liabilities was $113.1 million and $134.4 million, respectively, as of
July 1, 2022, and $115.1 million and $129.5 million, respectively, as of October 1, 2021. For those joint ventures accounted for under the equity method,
the Company's investment balances for the joint venture are included in Other Noncurrent Assets: Miscellaneous on the balance sheet and the
Company’s pro rata share of net income is included in revenue. In limited cases, there are basis differences between the equity in the joint venture and
the Company's investment created when the Company purchased its share of the joint venture. These basis differences are amortized based on an
internal allocation to underlying net assets, excluding allocations to goodwill. As of July 1, 2022, the Company’s equity method investments exceeded its
share of venture net assets by $36.1 million. Our investments in equity method joint ventures on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of July 1, 2022 and
October 1, 2021 were $98.5 million and $121.3 million, respectively. During the three months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021, we recognized
income from equity method joint ventures of $10.8 million and $16.6 million, respectively. During the nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021,
we recognized income from equity method joint ventures of $30.1 million and $46.9 million, respectively.

Accounts receivable from unconsolidated joint ventures accounted for under the equity method is $23.2 million and $19.7 million as of July 1,
2022 and October 1, 2021, respectively.

The Company held a 24.5% interest in AWE Management Ltd ("AWE ML") that was accounted for under the equity method. AWE ML was
previously under a contractual operating arrangement with the UK Ministry of Defence (MoD) with multiple years remaining under the arrangement, and
during fiscal 2021, the MoD unexpectedly announced plans to change its operating agreements with AWE ML that resulted in the early termination of the
contract in 2021. During the nine months ended July 2, 2021, the Company recorded an other-than-temporary impairment charge on its investment in
AWE ML in the amount of $38.9 million, which was included in miscellaneous income (expense), net in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings as a
result of the contract termination.

The Company held a cost method investment in C3.ai, Inc. ("C3") and in the first quarter of fiscal 2021, C3 completed an initial public offering
and as a result the Company carried its investment in C3 at fair value, with changes reflected in net income as it is an investment in equity securities with
a readily determinable fair value based on quoted market prices. During fiscal 2021 and subsequent to the IPO, the Company sold all shares owned in
C3. Dividend income, unrealized gains and related realized gains on disposal of these shares of $49.6 million were recognized in miscellaneous income
(expense), net, in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings for the nine months ended July 2, 2021.
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12.    Borrowings

At July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021, long-term debt consisted of the following (principal amounts in thousands):

Interest Rate Maturity July 1, 2022 October 1, 2021
Revolving Credit Facility Benchmark + applicable

margin (1) (2) March 2024 $ 1,172,794  $ 327,794 
2021 Term Loan Facility Benchmark + applicable

margin (1) (3) March 2024 986,760  1,081,724 
2020 Term Loan Facility Benchmark + applicable

margin (1) (4) March 2025 (5) 916,433  988,940 
Fixed-rate notes due:
Senior Notes, Series A 4.27% May 2025 190,000  190,000 
Senior Notes, Series B 4.42% May 2028 180,000  180,000 
Senior Notes, Series C 4.52% May 2030 130,000  130,000 
Less: Current Portion (5) (51,630) (53,456)
Less: Deferred Financing Fees (3,863) (5,069)
Total Long-term debt, net $ 3,520,494  $ 2,839,933 

(1) During the nine months ended July 1, 2022, the aggregate principal amounts denominated in British pounds under the Revolving Credit Facility, 2021 Term Loan Facility
and 2020 Term Loan Facility transitioned from underlying LIBOR benchmarked rates to SONIA rates. Borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars remained benchmarked to
LIBOR rates.

(2) Depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the credit agreement governing the Revolving Credit Facility (defined below)), U.S. dollar
denominated borrowings under the Revolving Credit Facility bear interest at either a eurocurrency rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and 1.625% or a base rate plus a
margin of between 0% and 0.625%. The applicable LIBOR rates including applicable margins at July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021 were approximately 2.62% and 1.45%.
Borrowings denominated in British pounds bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and 1.625%. There were no amounts drawn in British
pounds as of July 1, 2022.

(3) Depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the credit agreement governing the 2021 Term Loan Facility (defined below)), U.S. dollar
denominated borrowings under the 2021 Term Loan Facility bear interest at either a eurocurrency rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and 1.625% or a base rate plus a
margin of between 0% and 0.625%. The applicable LIBOR rate including applicable margins for borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars at July 1, 2022 and October 1,
2021 was approximately 2.53% and 1.43%. Borrowings denominated in British pounds bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and
1.625%, which was approximately 2.60% at July 1, 2022.

(4) Depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the credit agreement governing the 2020 Term Loan Facility (defined below)), U.S. dollar
denominated borrowings under the 2020 Term Loan Facility bear interest at either a eurocurrency rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and 1.5% or a base rate plus a
margin of between 0% and 0.5%. The applicable LIBOR rates including applicable margins for borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars at July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021
were approximately 3.04% and 1.45%. Borrowings denominated in British pounds bear interest at an adjusted SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and 1.625%,
which was approximately 2.60% at July 1, 2022.

(5) The 2020 Term Loan requires quarterly principal repayments of 1.25%, or $9.125 million and £3.125 million, of the aggregate initial principal amount borrowed.

On February 7, 2014, Jacobs and certain of its subsidiaries entered into a $1.6 billion long-term unsecured, revolving credit facility (as amended,
the “2014 Revolving Credit Facility”) with a syndicate of U.S. and international banks and financial institutions. On March 27, 2019, the Company entered
into a second amended and restated credit agreement (the "Revolving Credit Facility"), which amended and restated the 2014 Revolving Credit Facility
by, among other things, (a) extending the maturity date of the credit facility to March 27, 2024, (b) increasing the facility amount to $2.25 billion (with an
accordion feature that allows a further increase of the facility amount up to $3.25 billion), (c) eliminating the covenants restricting investments, joint
ventures and acquisitions by the Company and its subsidiaries and (d) adjusting the financial covenants to eliminate the net worth covenant upon the
removal of the same covenant from the Company’s existing Note Purchase Agreement (defined below). We were in compliance with the covenants
under the Revolving Credit Facility at July 1, 2022.
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The Revolving Credit Facility permits the Company to borrow under two separate tranches in U.S. dollars, certain specified foreign currencies,
and any other currency that may be approved in accordance with the terms of the Revolving Credit Facility. The Revolving Credit Facility also provides
for a financial letter of credit sub facility of $400.0 million, permits performance letters of credit, and provides for a $50.0 million sub facility for swing line
loans. Letters of credit are subject to fees based on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio. The Company pays a facility fee of between 0.08%
and 0.23% per annum depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio.

On March 25, 2020, the Company entered into an unsecured term loan facility (the “2020 Term Loan Facility”) with a syndicate of financial
institutions as lenders. Under the 2020 Term Loan Facility, the Company borrowed an aggregate principal amount of $730.0 million and one of the
Company's U.K. subsidiaries borrowed an aggregate principal amount of £250.0 million. The proceeds of the term loans were used to repay an existing
term loan with a maturity date of June 2020 and for general corporate purposes. The 2020 Term Loan Facility contains affirmative and negative
covenants and events of default customary for financings of this type that are consistent with those included in the Revolving Credit Facility.

During fiscal 2020, the Company entered into interest rate and cross currency derivative contracts to swap a portion of our variable rate debt to
fixed rate debt. See Note 19- Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for discussion regarding the Company's derivative
instruments.

On January 20, 2021, the Company entered into an unsecured delayed draw term loan facility (the “2021 Term Loan Facility”) with a syndicate of
financial institutions as lenders. Under the 2021 Term Loan Facility, the Company borrowed an aggregate principal amount of $200.0 million and £650.0
million. The proceeds of the term loans were used primarily to fund the Company's investment in PA Consulting. The 2021 Term Loan Facility contains
affirmative and negative covenants and events of default customary for financings of this type that are consistent with those included in the Revolving
Credit Facility and the 2020 Term Loan Facility.

The 2020 Term Loan Facility and the 2021 Term Loan Facility are together referred to as the "Term Loan Facilities". We were in compliance with
the covenants under the Term Loan Facilities at July 1, 2022.

On March 12, 2018, Jacobs entered into a note purchase agreement (as amended, the "Note Purchase Agreement") with respect to the
issuance and sale in a private placement transaction of $500 million in the aggregate principal amount of the Company’s senior notes in three series
(collectively, the “Senior Notes”). The Note Purchase Agreement provides that if the Company's consolidated leverage ratio exceeds a certain amount,
the interest on the Senior Notes may increase by 75 basis points. The Senior Notes may be prepaid at any time subject to a make-whole premium. The
sale of the Senior Notes closed on May 15, 2018. The Company used the net proceeds from the offering of Senior Notes to repay certain existing
indebtedness and for other general corporate purposes. The Note Purchase Agreement contains affirmative, negative and financial covenants customary
for financings of this type, including, among other things, covenants to maintain a minimum consolidated net worth and maximum consolidated leverage
ratio and limitations on certain other liens, mergers, dispositions and transactions with affiliates. In addition, the Note Purchase Agreement contains
customary events of default. We were in compliance with the covenants under the Note Purchase Agreement at July 1, 2022.

We believe the carrying value of the Revolving Credit Facility, the Term Loan Facilities and other debt outstanding approximates fair value based
on the interest rates and scheduled maturities applicable to the outstanding borrowings. The fair value of the Senior Notes is estimated to be $486.9
million at July 1, 2022, based on Level 2 inputs. The fair value is determined by discounting future cash flows using interest rates available for issuances
with similar terms and average maturities.

The Company has issued $1.3 million in letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Facility, leaving $1.08 billion of available borrowing capacity
under the Revolving Credit Facility at July 1, 2022. In addition, the Company had issued $285.6 million under separate, committed and uncommitted
letter-of-credit facilities for total issued letters of credit of $286.9 million at July 1, 2022.

13.    Leases

The Company’s right-of use assets and lease liabilities relate to real estate, project assets used in connection with long-term construction
contracts, IT assets and vehicles. The Company’s leases have remaining lease terms of one year to thirteen years. The Company’s lease obligations are
primarily for the use of office space and are primarily operating leases.
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Certain of the Company’s leases contain renewal, extension, or termination options. The Company assesses each option on an individual basis and will
only include options reasonably certain of exercise in the lease term. The Company generally considers the base term to be the term provided in the
contract. None of the Company’s lease agreements contain material options to purchase the lease property, material residual value guarantees, or
material restrictions or covenants.

Long-term project asset and vehicle leases (leases with terms greater than twelve months), along with all real estate and IT asset leases, are
recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at the present value of the minimum lease payments not yet paid, net of impairments taken. Because the
Company primarily acts as a lessee and the rates implicit in its leases are not readily determinable, the Company generally uses its incremental
borrowing rate on the lease commencement date to calculate the present value of future lease payments. Certain leases include payments that are
based solely on an index or rate. These variable lease payments are included in the calculation of the right-of-use ("ROU") asset and lease liability and
are initially measured using the index or rate at the lease commencement date. Other variable lease payments, such as payments based on use and for
property taxes, insurance, or common area maintenance that are based on actual assessments are excluded from the ROU asset and lease liability and
are expensed as incurred. In addition to the present value of the future lease payments, the calculation of the ROU asset also includes any deferred rent,
lease pre-payments and initial direct costs of obtaining the lease, such as commissions.

Certain lease contracts contain nonlease components such as maintenance and utilities. The Company has made an accounting policy election,
as allowed under ASC 842-10-15-37 and discussed above, to capitalize both the lease component and nonlease components of its contracts as a single
lease component for all of its right-of-use assets.

Short-term project asset and vehicle leases (project asset and vehicle leases with an initial term of twelve months or less or leases that are
cancellable by the lessee and lessor without significant penalties) are not recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and are expensed on a straight-
line basis over the lease term. The majority of the Company’s short-term leases relate to equipment used on construction projects. These leases are
entered into at agreed upon hourly, daily, weekly or monthly rental rates for an unspecified duration and typically have a termination for convenience
provision. Such equipment leases are considered short-term in nature unless it is reasonably certain that the equipment will be leased for a term greater
than twelve months.
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The components of lease expense (reflected in selling, general and administrative expenses) for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022
and July 2, 2021 were as follows (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Lease expense
Operating lease expense $ 36,636  $ 41,619  $ 114,387  $ 121,870 
Variable lease expense 8,532  7,836  24,471  23,255 
Sublease income (3,745) (2,493) (11,335) (9,422)
Total lease expense $ 41,423  $ 46,962  $ 127,523  $ 135,703 

Supplemental information related to the Company's leases for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 was as follows (in thousands):

Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurements of lease liabilities $ 173,639
Right-of-use assets obtained in exchange for new operating lease liabilities $ 35,187
Weighted average remaining lease term - operating leases 6.5 Years
Weighted average discount rate - operating leases 2.8%

Total remaining lease payments under the Company's leases for the remainder of fiscal 2022 and for the succeeding years is as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Operating Leases
2022 $ 49,091 
2023 166,014 
2024 149,989 
2025 126,392 
2026 108,277 
Thereafter 287,549 

887,312 
Less Interest (80,291)

$ 807,021 

Right-of-Use and Other Long-Lived Asset Impairment

During fiscal 2022, as a result of the Company's transformation initiatives, including the changing nature of the Company's use of office space for
its workforce, the Company evaluated its existing real estate lease portfolio. These initiatives during the current fiscal year resulted in the abandonment
of certain leased office spaces and the establishment of a formal plan to sublease certain other leased spaces that will no longer be utilized by the
Company. In connection with the Company’s actions related to these initiatives, the Company evaluated certain of its lease right-of-use assets and
related property, equipment and leasehold improvements for impairment under ASC 360.

As a result of the analysis, the Company recognized an impairment loss during the nine month period of fiscal 2022 of $74.6 million, which is
included in selling, general and administrative expenses in the accompanying statement of earnings for the current year-to-date period. The impairment
loss recorded includes $56.6 million related to right-of-use lease assets and $18.0 million related to other long-lived assets, including property,
equipment and improvements and leasehold improvements.
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The fair values for the asset groups relating to the impaired long-lived assets were estimated primarily using discounted cash flow models
(income approach) with Level 3 inputs. The significant assumptions used in estimating fair value include the expected downtime prior to the
commencement of future subleases, projected sublease income over the remaining lease periods and discount rates that reflect the level of risk
associated with receiving future cash flows.

14.    Pension and Other Postretirement Benefit Plans

The following table presents the components of net periodic pension benefit recognized in earnings during the three and nine months ended
July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Component:
Service cost $ 1,709  $ 1,735  $ 5,127  $ 5,206 
Interest cost 13,784  11,785  41,352  35,354 
Expected return on plan assets (23,263) (25,427) (69,789) (76,282)
Amortization of previously unrecognized
items 3,092  4,032  9,276  12,095 

Total net periodic pension benefit recognized $ (4,678) $ (7,875) $ (14,034) $ (23,627)

The service cost component of net periodic pension benefit is presented in the same line item as other compensation costs (direct cost of
contracts and selling, general and administrative expenses) and the other components of net periodic pension expense are presented in miscellaneous
income (expense), net on the Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

The following table presents certain information regarding the Company’s cash contributions to our pension plans for fiscal 2022 (in thousands):

Cash contributions made during the first nine months of fiscal 2022 $ 23,459 
Cash contributions projected for the remainder of fiscal 2022 6,697 
Total $ 30,156 
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15.    PA Consulting Business Combination

Deal Summary, Opening Balance Sheet and Pro Forma Financial Information

On March 2, 2021, Jacobs completed the strategic investment of a 65% interest in PA Consulting, a UK-based leading innovation and
transformation consulting firm. The total consideration paid by the Company was $1.7 billion, funded through cash on hand, proceeds from a new term
loan and draws on the Company's existing Revolving Credit Facility. Further, in connection with the transaction, an estimated additional $261 million in
investment proceeds had not yet been distributed at the investment date due to continuing employment requirements of associated management
owners. Consequently, this amount represented compensation expense incurred related to the investment that was expensed subsequent to the date of
the transaction, and was reflected in selling, general and administrative expense and cash from operations for the fiscal year ended October 1, 2021.
Approximately $267 million was recorded in the second quarter of fiscal 2021, with approximately $6 million of the estimated charges forfeited by
employees that left the Company before payment and the net cash impact recorded in the third quarter of fiscal 2021. The remaining 35% interest was
acquired by PA Consulting employees, whose redeemable noncontrolling interests had a fair value of $582.4 million on the closing date, including
subsequent purchase accounting adjustments. PA Consulting is accounted for as a consolidated subsidiary and as a separate operating segment. See
Note 12 - Borrowings for more discussion on the financing for the transaction.

The following summarizes the fair values of PA Consulting's assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date (in millions):

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 134.9 
Receivables 166.5 
Property, equipment and improvements, net 40.5 
Goodwill 1,454.0 
Identifiable intangible assets 1,004.2 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 9.5 
Miscellaneous long term assets 84.0 

Total Assets $ 2,893.6 

Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 6.5 
Accrued liabilities and other current liabilities 354.8 
Other long term liabilities 248.0 
Total Liabilities 609.3

Redeemable Noncontrolling interests 582.4 
Net assets acquired $ 1,701.9 

Goodwill recognized results from a substantial assembled workforce, which does not qualify for separate recognition, as well as expected future
economic benefits. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The Company has completed its final assessment of
the fair values of PA Consulting's assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Since the initial preliminary estimates reported in the second quarter of fiscal
2021, the Company updated certain provisional amounts reflected in the final purchase price allocation, as summarized in the estimated fair values of PA
Consulting assets acquired and liabilities assumed above. See below for further discussion on updates to redeemable noncontrolling interests.

Identifiable intangibles are customer relationships, contracts and backlog and trade name and have estimated lives ranging from 9 to 20 years
(weighted average life of approximately 12 years).
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The following presents summarized unaudited pro forma operating results of Jacobs from continuing operations assuming that the Company had
the PA Consulting investment at September 28, 2019. These pro forma operating results are presented for illustrative purposes only and are not
indicative of the operating results that would have been achieved had the related events occurred (in millions, except per share data):

For the Nine Months Ended
July 2, 2021

Revenues $ 10,917.8 
Net earnings (loss) of the Group $ 624.1 
Net earnings attributable to Jacobs $ 503.2 
Net earnings attributable to Jacobs per share:
Basic earnings per share $ 3.86 
Diluted earnings per share $ 3.83 

Income tax expense for the nine-month pro forma period ended July 2, 2021 was $(231.3) million.
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Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

In connection with the PA Consulting investment, the Company recorded redeemable noncontrolling interests, including subsequent purchase
accounting adjustments, representing the noncontrolling interest holders' equity interests in the form of preferred and common shares of PA Consulting,
with substantially all of the value associated with these interests allocable to the preferred shares.

During the first and third quarters of fiscal 2022, PA Consulting repurchased certain shares of the redeemable noncontrolling interest holders for
$35.1 million and $11.0 million, respectively, in cash and during the third quarter of fiscal 2022, PA Consulting issued certain shares of redeemable
noncontrolling interest holders for $49.7 million. The difference between the cash purchase prices and the recorded book values of these repurchased
and issued interests was recorded in the Company’s consolidated retained earnings.

During the third quarter of fiscal 2021, updates to the Company’s preliminary opening balance sheet fair value estimates of the redeemable
noncontrolling interests resulted in an offsetting decrease and increase in fair value of the preference share and common share components of the
interests by $57.3 million, respectively, with the corresponding redemption value adjustment associated with the preference share portion decreasing
consolidated retained earnings and earnings per share by $0.44. See Note 6- Earnings Per Share and Certain Related Information. The results of these
adjustments had no impact on the Company’s overall results of operations, financial position, or cash flows.

Changes in the redeemable noncontrolling interests during the nine months ended July 1, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):

Balance at October 1, 2021 $ 657,722 
Accrued Preferred Dividend to Preference Shareholders 51,293 
Attribution of Preferred Dividend to Common Shareholders (51,293)
Net income attributable to redeemable noncontrolling interests to
Common Shareholders 27,246 
Redeemable Noncontrolling interests redemption value adjustment 30,152 
Repurchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (53,834)
Issuance of redeemable noncontrolling interests 54,884 
Cumulative translation adjustment and other (51,651)
Balance at July 1, 2022 $ 664,519 

In addition, certain employees and nonemployees of PA Consulting are eligible to receive equity-based incentive grants in the future under the
terms of the applicable agreements.

Employee Benefit Trust

PA Consulting is party to an employee benefit trust that is a separately administered discretionary trust for the benefit of employees and is
consolidated under U.S. GAAP. At July 1, 2022, the Company held $12.0 million in cash within the employee benefit trust that is restricted from general
use and is included in prepaid expenses and other current assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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16.    Other Business Combinations

StreetLight Data, Inc.
On February 4, 2022, the Company acquired StreetLight Data, Inc. ("StreetLight"). StreetLight is a pioneer of mobility analytics who uses its data

and machine learning resources to shed light on mobility and enable users to solve complex transportation problems. The Company paid total base
consideration of approximately $190.8 million in cash, and issued $0.9 million in equity and $5.2 million in in-the-money stock options to the former
owners of StreetLight. The Company also paid off StreetLight's debt of approximately $1.0 million simultaneously with the consummation of the
acquisition. The following summarizes the fair values of StreetLight's assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date (in millions):

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7.3 
Receivables 5.2 
Property, equipment and improvements, net 0.1 
Goodwill 116.7 
Identifiable intangible assets 105.1 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 2.0 

Total Assets $ 236.4 

Liabilities
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 23.1 
Other long term liabilities 16.4 

Total Liabilities 39.5 
Net assets acquired $ 196.9 

The purchase price allocation is based upon preliminary information and is subject to change when additional information is obtained. Goodwill
recognized results from a substantial assembled workforce, which does not qualify for separate recognition, as well as expected future synergies from
combining operations. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The Company has not completed its final
assessment of the fair values of StreetLight's assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Since the initial preliminary estimates reported in the second
quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company has updated certain amounts reflected in the preliminary purchase price allocation, as summarized in the fair values
of StreetLight's assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date set forth above, the majority of which related to reclassifications
between goodwill and intangibles and for deferred taxes.

The final purchase price allocation could result in adjustments to certain assets and liabilities, including the residual amount allocated to
goodwill. 

Identifiable intangibles are technology, data and customer relationships, contracts and backlog and have estimated lives of 7, 4 and 9 years,
respectively.

No summarized unaudited pro forma results are provided for the StreetLight acquisition due to the immateriality of this acquisition relative to the
Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.
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BlackLynx
On November 19, 2021, a subsidiary of Jacobs acquired all outstanding shares of common stock of BlackLynx, a provider of high-performance

software, to complement Jacobs' portfolio of cyber, intelligence and digital solutions. The Company paid total base consideration of approximately
$235.4 million in cash to the former owners of BlackLynx. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company also paid off BlackLynx's debt of
approximately $5.3 million simultaneously with the consummation of the acquisition. The following summarizes the fair values of BlackLynx's assets
acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date (in millions):

 

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5.1 
Receivables 7.7 
Property, equipment and improvements, net 0.8 
Goodwill 197.2 
Identifiable intangible assets 51.1 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3.2 
Miscellaneous long term assets 12.9 

Total Assets $ 278.0 

Liabilities
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities 19.5 
Other long term liabilities 23.1 

Total Liabilities 42.6 
Net assets acquired $ 235.4 

The purchase price allocation is based upon preliminary information and is subject to change when additional information is obtained. Goodwill
recognized results from a substantial assembled workforce, which does not qualify for separate recognition, as well as expected future synergies from
combining operations. None of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes. The Company has not completed its final
assessment of the fair values of BlackLynx's assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Since the initial preliminary estimates reported in the first quarter of
fiscal 2022, the Company has updated certain amounts reflected in the preliminary purchase price allocation, as summarized in the fair values of
BlackLynx's assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date set forth above, the majority of which related to reclassifications between
goodwill and intangibles and for deferred taxes.

The final purchase price allocation could result in additional adjustments to certain assets and liabilities, including the residual amount allocated
to goodwill. 

Identifiable intangibles are technology and customer relationships, contracts and backlog and have estimated lives of 11 years and 6 years,
respectively.

No summarized unaudited pro forma results are provided for the BlackLynx acquisition due to the immateriality of this acquisition relative to the
Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

Page 31



JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

Buffalo Group

On November 24, 2020, a subsidiary of Jacobs completed the acquisition of Buffalo Group, a leader in advanced cyber and intelligence
solutions, which allows Jacobs to further expand its cyber and intelligence solutions offerings to government clients. The Company paid total
consideration of $190.1 million, which was comprised of approximately $182.4 million in cash to the former owners of Buffalo Group and contingent
consideration of $7.7 million. The contingent consideration was subsequently recognized in fiscal 2021 as an offset to selling, general and administrative
expense when it was determined no amounts would be paid. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company assumed the Buffalo Group's debt of
approximately $7.7 million. The Company repaid all of the assumed Buffalo Group debt by the end of the first fiscal quarter of 2021. The following
summarizes the fair values of Buffalo Group's assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition date (in millions):

 

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 8.4 
Receivables 19.2 
Property, equipment and improvements, net 2.3 
Goodwill 130.7 
Identifiable intangible assets 74.0 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6.2 

Total Assets $ 240.8 

Liabilities
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 46.9 

Other long term liabilities 3.8 
Total Liabilities 50.7
Net assets acquired $ 190.1 

Goodwill recognized results from a substantial assembled workforce, which does not qualify for separate recognition, as well as expected future
synergies from combining operations. All of the goodwill recognized is expected to be deductible for tax purposes, given the acquisition was structured
as an asset acquisition for tax purposes. The Company has completed its final assessment of the fair values of Buffalo Group's assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. Since the initial preliminary estimates reported in the first quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company has updated certain amounts reflected
in the final purchase price allocation, as summarized in the fair values of Buffalo Group's assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition
date set forth above.

Identifiable intangibles are customer relationships, contracts and backlog and have estimated lives of 9 years.

No summarized unaudited pro forma results are provided for the Buffalo Group acquisition due to the immateriality of this acquisition relative to
the Company's consolidated financial position and results of operations.

17.     Sale of Energy, Chemicals and Resources ("ECR") Business

On April 26, 2019, Jacobs completed the sale of its ECR business to Worley for a purchase price of $3.4 billion consisting of (i) $2.8 billion in
cash plus (ii) 58.2 million ordinary shares of Worley, subject to adjustments for changes in working capital and certain other items (the “ECR sale”).

As a result of the ECR sale, substantially all ECR-related assets and liabilities were sold (the "Disposal Group"). We determined that the
Disposal Group should be reported as discontinued operations in accordance with ASC 210-05, Discontinued Operations because their disposal
represent a strategic shift that had a major effect on our operations and financial results. As such, the financial results of the ECR business are reflected
in our unaudited Consolidated Statements of Earnings as discontinued operations for all periods presented.

As a result of the ECR sale, the Company recognized a pre-tax gain of approximately $1.1 billion, $935.1 million of which was recognized in
fiscal 2019, $110.2 million in fiscal 2020 and $15.6 million for the year ended October 1, 2021.
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In the second quarter of fiscal 2021, the Company received final working capital settlement proceeds of $36.4 million from Worley and as such,
recorded a pre-tax gain of $15.6 million. Offsetting the proceeds from the settlement to arrive at the net gain amount were previously recorded accounts
receivable from Worley.

Investment in Worley Stock

As discussed above, the Company held ordinary shares of Worley that it received in connection with the ECR sale. Dividend income, realized
gains and losses on sale and unrealized gains and losses on changes in fair value of Worley shares were recognized in miscellaneous income
(expense), net in continuing operations prior to sale. The Company's investment in Worley was measured at fair value through net income as it was an
equity investment with a readily determinable fair value based on quoted market prices and for the three and nine month periods ended July 2, 2021, the
Company recognized $36.8 million and $102.6 million gains, respectively, associated with share price and currency changes on this investment. The
nine months ended July 2, 2021 included Worley stock dividends of $9.8 million. The Company completed the sale of all ordinary shares of Worley it
held in the fourth fiscal quarter of fiscal 2021.

18.    Restructuring and Other Charges

During fiscal 2022, the Company implemented certain restructuring and integration initiatives relating to the StreetLight and BlackLynx
acquisitions, the activities of which are expected to be substantially completed before the end of fiscal 2023. Also, during fiscal 2022, the Company
implemented further real estate rescaling efforts that were associated with its fiscal 2020 transformation program relating to real estate and other staffing
initiatives. These initiatives are expected to continue into fiscal 2023.

During fiscal 2021, the Company implemented certain restructuring and integration initiatives relating to the Buffalo Group acquisition and the PA
Consulting investment. The activities of the Buffalo Group initiative are substantially completed and the activities of the PA Consulting initiative are
expected to end before the end of fiscal 2025.

Additionally, the Company recorded impairment charges on its investment in AWE ML during fiscal 2021. See related discussion in Note 11- Joint
ventures, VIEs and other investments.

During fiscal 2019 and continuing into fiscal 2020, the Company implemented certain restructuring, separation and integration initiatives
associated with the ECR sale, the acquisition of The KeyW Holding Corporation ("KeyW"), and other related cost reduction initiatives. Additionally, in
fiscal 2020, the Company implemented certain restructuring and integration initiatives associated with the acquisition of John Wood Group's nuclear
business. The restructuring activities and related costs were comprised mainly of separation and lease abandonment and sublease programs, while the
separation and integration activities and costs were mainly related to the engagement of consulting services and internal personnel and other related
costs dedicated to the Company’s ECR-business separation and integration of KeyW and the John Wood Group’s nuclear business. The activities of
these initiatives have been substantially completed.

As part of the Company's acquisition of CH2M Hill Companies, Ltd. ("CH2M") during fiscal 2018, the Company implemented certain restructuring
plans that were comprised mainly of severance and lease abandonment programs as well as integration activities involving the engagement of
professional services and internal personnel dedicated to the Company's integration management efforts. These activities have continued through fiscal
2021 and are expected to be substantially completed before the end of fiscal 2022.

Collectively, the above-mentioned restructuring activities are referred to as “Restructuring and other charges.”

The following table summarizes the impacts of the Restructuring and other charges by line of business ("LOB") in connection with the CH2M
acquisition, John Wood Group's nuclear business, Buffalo Group, StreetLight and BlackLynx acquisitions, the PA Consulting investment, the ECR sale,
the Company's transformation initiatives relating to real estate and other staffing programs, and the impairment and final exit activities of the AWE ML
investment for the three and nine month periods ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 (in thousands):
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Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Critical Mission Solutions $ (255) $ 921  $ 4,361  $ 4,840 
People & Places Solutions 25  592  61,865  7,291 
PA Consulting 759  1,351  2,475  14,449 
Corporate 4,048  10,904  113,399  65,929 

Total $ 4,577  $ 13,768  $ 182,100  $ 92,509 
Amounts included in:

Operating profit (mainly SG&A) (1) $ 4,707  $ 8,058  $ 192,782  $ 53,638 
Other (Income) Expense, net (2) (130) 5,710  (10,682) 38,871 

$ 4,577  $ 13,768  $ 182,100  $ 92,509 

(1) Included in the nine month period ended July 1, 2022 was $91.3 million related to the final pre-tax settlement of the Legacy CH2M Matter (as defined in Note 19 -
Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments), net of previously recorded reserves and approximately $77 million in charges associated mainly
with real estate impairments and related charges and $24.5 million in transformation and other charges, the majority of which related to People and Places Solutions.

(2) The nine month period ended July 1, 2022 included gains of $(7.1) million related to lease terminations. The nine months ended July 2, 2021 included $38.9 million in
charges related to the impairment of our AWE ML investment. See Note 20- Segment Information.

The activity in the Company’s accruals for Restructuring and other charges for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 is as follows (in thousands):

Balance at October 1, 2021 $ 14,031 
Net (Credits) Charges (1) 19,604 
Payments and other (25,297)
Balance at July 1, 2022 $ 8,338 

(1) Excludes $162.5 million in other net charges mainly comprised of $91.3 million in charges and payments for the final pre-tax settlement of the Legacy CH2M Matter (net of
previously recorded reserves) during the three months ended July 1, 2022, and $71.2 million associated mainly with real estate related impairments and other
transformation activities described above during the nine months ended July 1, 2022.

The following table summarizes the Restructuring and other charges by major type of costs for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022
and July 2, 2021 (in thousands):

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Lease Abandonments and Impairments (1) $ (32) $ 354  $ 67,805  $ 2,565 
Voluntary and Involuntary Terminations (76) 1,692  5,035  14,227 
Outside Services 4,337  5,463  20,513  31,516 
Other (2) 348  6,259  88,747  44,201 

Total $ 4,577  $ 13,768  $ 182,100  $ 92,509 

(1) The nine month period in fiscal 2022 includes approximately $74.9 million in charges associated mainly with real estate related impairments and other transformation
activities reflected in Lease Abandonments and Impairments.

(2) The nine month period ended July 1, 2022 amounts are comprised mainly of $91.3 million in other charges related to the final pre-tax settlement of the Legacy CH2M
Matter, net of previously recorded reserves. Also, the nine months ended July 2, 2021 included $38.9 million in Other charges associated with the impairment of our
investment in AWE ML.

Cumulative amounts incurred to date under our various Restructuring and other activities described above by each major type of cost as of
July 1, 2022 are as follows (in thousands):
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Lease Abandonments and Impairments $ 385,603 
Voluntary and Involuntary Terminations 149,777 
Outside Services 314,507 
Other 233,727 

Total $ 1,083,614 

19.     Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk under its variable rate borrowings and additionally, due to the nature of the Company's international
operations, we are at times exposed to foreign currency risk. As such, we sometimes enter into foreign exchange hedging contracts and interest rate
hedging contracts in order to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign currencies and interest rates.

The Company is party to interest rate swap agreements and a cross-currency swap agreement with notional values of $766.7 million and
$127.8 million, respectively, as of July 1, 2022 to manage the interest rate exposure on our variable rate loans and the foreign currency exposure on our
USD borrowings by a European subsidiary. By entering into the swap agreements, the Company converted the LIBOR and SONIA rate based liabilities
into fixed rate liabilities and, for the cross currency swap, our LIBOR rate based borrowing in USD to a fixed rate Euro liability, for periods ranging from
three and a half to ten years. For U.S. dollar denominated interest rate swap agreements, the Company receives the one month LIBOR rate and pays
monthly a fixed rate ranging from 0.704% to 1.116%. For interest rate swaps denominated in British pounds, the Company receives a one month
adjusted SONIA rate and pays a monthly fixed rate of 0.820%. Under the cross currency swap agreement, the Company receives the one month LIBOR
rate plus 0.875% in USD and pays monthly a Euro fixed rate of 0.726% to 0.746% for the term of the swaps. The swaps were designated as cash-flow
hedges in accordance with ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging. See Note 4- New Accounting Pronouncements for additional discussion related to the
application of SONIA to existing hedge contracts. The fair value of the interest rate and cross currency swaps at July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021 was
$74.9 million and $(0.8) million, respectively, of which all $74.9 million is included in miscellaneous other assets on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at
July 1, 2022. As of October 1, 2021, $(11.0) million is included in other deferred liabilities and $10.2 million is included in miscellaneous other assets on
the Consolidated Balance Sheets. The unrealized net gain (loss) on these interest rate and cross currency swaps was $52.8 million and $7.4 million, net
of tax, and was included in accumulated other comprehensive income as of July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021, respectively.

Additionally, the Company held foreign exchange forward contracts in currencies that support our operations, including British Pound, Euro,
Australian Dollar and other currencies, with notional values of $186.1 million at July 1, 2022 and $506.5 million at October 1, 2021. The length of these
contracts currently ranges from one to 12 months. The fair value of the foreign exchange contracts at July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021 was $(3.2)
million and $55.5 million, respectively, which is included in within accounts payable for the current period and receivables and contract assets for the
prior period on the Consolidated Balance Sheets and with associated income statement impacts included in miscellaneous income (expense) in the
Consolidated Statements of Earnings. During the second quarter of fiscal 2022, the Company settled $66.7 million in cash related to certain Australian
Dollar foreign exchange forward contracts and subsequently entered into a new Australian Dollar instrument with an equal notional value which was
ultimately settled in the third quarter of fiscal 2022.

The fair value measurements of these derivatives are being made using Level 2 inputs under ASC 820, Fair Value Measurement, as the
measurements are based on observable inputs other than quoted prices in active markets. We are exposed to risk from credit-related losses resulting
from nonperformance by counterparties to our financial instruments. We perform credit evaluations of our counterparties under forward exchange and
interest rate contracts and expect all counterparties to meet their obligations. We have not experienced credit losses from our counterparties.

Page 35



JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

Contractual Guarantees and Insurance

In the normal course of business, we make contractual commitments (some of which are supported by separate guarantees) and on occasion
we are a party in a litigation or arbitration proceeding. The litigation or arbitration in which we are involved includes personal injury claims, professional
liability claims and breach of contract claims. Where we provide a separate guarantee, it is strictly in support of the underlying contractual commitment.
Guarantees take various forms including surety bonds required by law, or standby letters of credit ("LOC" and also referred to as “bank guarantees”) or
corporate guarantees given to induce a party to enter into a contract with a subsidiary. Standby LOCs are also used as security for advance payments or
in various other transactions. The guarantees have various expiration dates ranging from an arbitrary date to completion of our work (e.g., engineering
only) to completion of the overall project. We record in the Consolidated Balance Sheets amounts representing our estimated liability relating to such
guarantees, litigation and insurance claims. Guarantees are accounted for in accordance with ASC 460-10, Guarantees, at fair value at the inception of
the guarantee.

At July 1, 2022 and October 1, 2021, the Company had issued and outstanding approximately $286.9 million and $263.8 million, respectively, in
LOCs and $2.2 billion and $2.1 billion, respectively, in surety bonds.

We maintain insurance coverage for most insurable aspects of our business and operations. Our insurance programs have varying coverage
limits depending upon the type of insurance and include certain conditions and exclusions which insurance companies may raise in response to any
claim that is asserted by or against the Company. We have also elected to retain a portion of losses and liabilities that occur through using various
deductibles, limits, and retentions under our insurance programs. As a result, we may be subject to a future liability for which we are only partially insured
or completely uninsured. We intend to mitigate any such future liability by continuing to exercise prudent business judgment in negotiating the terms and
conditions of the contracts which the Company enters with its clients. Our insurers are also subject to business risk and, as a result, one or more of them
may be unable to fulfill their insurance obligations due to insolvency or otherwise.

Additionally, as a contractor providing services to the U.S. federal government, we are subject to many types of audits, investigations, and claims
by, or on behalf of, the government including with respect to contract performance, pricing, cost allocations, procurement practices, labor practices, and
socioeconomic obligations. Furthermore, our income, franchise, and similar tax returns and filings are also subject to audit and investigation by the
Internal Revenue Service, most states within the United States, as well as by various government agencies representing jurisdictions outside the United
States.

Our Consolidated Balance Sheets include amounts representing our probable estimated liability relating to such claims, guarantees, litigation,
audits, and investigations. We perform an analysis to determine the level of reserves to establish for insurance-related claims that are known and have
been asserted against us, as well as for insurance-related claims that are believed to have been incurred based on actuarial analysis but have not yet
been reported to our claims administrators as of the respective balance sheet dates. We include any adjustments to such insurance reserves in our
consolidated results of operations. Insurance recoveries are recorded as assets if recovery is probable and estimated liabilities are not reduced by
expected insurance recoveries.

The Company believes, after consultation with counsel, that such guarantees, litigation, U.S. government contract-related audits, investigations
and claims, and income tax audits and investigations should not have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements, beyond
amounts currently accrued.
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Litigation and Investigations

In 2012, CH2M HILL Australia PTY Limited, a subsidiary of CH2M, entered into a 50/50 integrated joint venture with Australian construction
contractor UGL Infrastructure Pty Limited. The joint venture entered into a Consortium Agreement with General Electric and GE Electrical International
Inc. The Consortium was awarded a subcontract by JKC Australia LNG Pty Limited ("JKC") for the engineering, procurement, construction and
commissioning of a 360 MW Combined Cycle Power Plant for INPEX Operations Australia Pty Limited at Blaydin Point, Darwin, NT, Australia (the
"Legacy CH2M Matter"). The subcontract was terminated in January 2017. In or around August 2017, the Consortium commenced an arbitration. On
April 12, 2022, JKC and the Consortium entered into a confidential deed of settlement (“Settlement Agreement”). Under the terms of the Settlement
Agreement, CH2M, as guarantor of CH2M Australia PTY Limited’s obligations with respect to the subcontract with JKC, made a cash payment to JKC in
April 2022 of AUD640 million (or approximately $475 million using mid-April 2022 exchange rates). As a result of the settlement, additional pre-tax
charges of $91.3 million were recorded during the nine-months ended July 1, 2022 for this matter (over amounts previously reserved and reported in
long-term Other Deferred Liabilities in the Company's Consolidated Balance Sheet). The Settlement Agreement provided for a release of claims between
JKC and each member of the Consortium, and in connection with this agreement the members of the Consortium also waived all claims against each
other and their respective parent guarantors relating to the project.

On December 22, 2008, a coal fly ash pond at the Kingston Power Plant of the Tennessee Valley Authority ("TVA") was breached, releasing fly
ash waste into the Emory River and surrounding community. In February 2009, TVA awarded a contract to the Company to provide project management
services associated with the clean-up. All remediation and dredging were completed in August 2013 by other contractors under direct contracts with TVA.
The Company did not perform the remediation, and its scope was limited to program management services. Certain employees of the contractors
performing the cleanup work on the project filed lawsuits against the Company beginning in August 2013, alleging they were injured due to the
Company's failure to protect the plaintiffs from exposure to fly ash, and asserting related personal injuries. The primary case, Greg Adkisson, et al. v.
Jacobs Engineering Group Inc., case No. 3:13-CV-505-TAV-HBG, filed in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Tennessee, consists of 10
consolidated cases. This case and the related cases involve several hundred plaintiffs that were employees of the contractors that completed the
remediation and dredging work. The cases are at various stages of litigation, and several of the cases are currently stayed pending resolution of other
cases and/or appeal. Additionally, in May 2019, Roane County and the cities of Kingston and Harriman filed a lawsuit against TVA and the Company
alleging that they misled the public about risks associated with the released fly ash. In October 2020, the Court granted Jacobs and TVA’s motion to
dismiss the Roane County litigation and closed the case. In addition, in November 2019, a resident of Roane County, Margie Delozier, filed a putative
class action against TVA and the Company alleging they failed to adequately warn local residents about risks associated with the released fly ash. The
Company and TVA filed separate motions to dismiss the Delozier case in April 2020. In February 2021, the Court granted dismissal of the Delozier
Complaint with prejudice, with the exception of plaintiffs’ nuisance cause of action, which plaintiffs voluntarily dismissed in June 2021. In August 2021,
Thomas Ryan, a resident of Roane County, filed an action against Jacobs and TVA claiming personal injury and property damage. In June 2022, the
Court granted Jacobs' motion to dismiss Ryan’s action in its entirety, closing the case. Separately, in February 2020, the Company learned that the
district attorney in Roane County recommended that the Tennessee Bureau of Investigation investigate issues pertaining to clean up worker safety at
Kingston. On November 16, 2021, the Roane County district attorney announced that it had concluded its investigation into issues pertaining to the
Kingston coal ash spill cleanup. No indictments were issued. There has been no finding of liability against the Company or that any of the alleged
illnesses are the result of exposure to fly ash in any of the above matters. The Company disputes the allegations asserted in all of the above matters and
is vigorously defending these matters. The Company does not expect the resolution of these matters to have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

On October 31, 2019, the Company received a request from the Enforcement Division of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("the SEC")
for the production of certain information and documents. The information and documents sought by the SEC primarily relate to the operations of a joint
venture in Morocco which was at one time partially-owned by the Company (and subsequently divested), including in respect of possible corrupt
practices. In July 2022, the Company received a confirmatory letter from the SEC staff stating that its investigation of this matter had been terminated
and that the staff does not intend to recommend an enforcement action against the Company.
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20.    Segment Information

The Company's three operating segments are comprised of its two global lines of business ("LOBs"): Critical Mission Solutions ("CMS") and
People & Places Solutions ("P&PS") and its majority investment in PA Consulting. For further information on the PA Consulting investment, refer to Note
15 - PA Consulting Business Combination.

The Company’s Chair and Chief Executive Officer is the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) and can evaluate the performance of each of
these segments and make appropriate resource allocations among each of the segments. Under this organization, the sales function is managed by
LOB and PA Consulting, and accordingly, the associated cost is embedded in the segments and reported to the respective head of each segment. In
addition, a portion of the costs of other support functions (e.g., finance, legal, human resources, and information technology) is allocated to each LOB
using methodologies which, we believe, effectively attribute the cost of these support functions to the revenue generating activities of the Company on a
rational basis. The cost of the Company’s cash incentive plan, the Leadership Performance Plan ("LPP"), formerly named the Management Incentive
Plan, and the expense associated with the Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. 1999 Stock Incentive Plan (“1999 SIP”) have likewise been charged to the
LOBs except for those amounts determined to relate to the business as a whole (which amounts remain in other corporate expenses).

Financial information for each segment is reviewed by the CODM to assess performance and make decisions regarding the allocation of
resources. The Company generally does not track assets by LOB, nor does it provide such information to the CODM.

The CODM evaluates the operating performance of our operating segments using segment operating profit, which is defined as margin less
“corporate charges” (e.g., the allocated amounts described above). The Company incurs certain Selling, General and Administrative costs (“SG&A”) that
relate to its business as a whole which are not allocated to the segments.

The following tables present total revenues and segment operating profit from continuing operations for each reportable segment (in thousands)
and includes a reconciliation of segment operating profit to total U.S. GAAP operating profit by including certain corporate-level expenses, Restructuring
and other charges (as defined in Note 18 - Restructuring and Other Charges) and transaction and integration costs (in thousands).

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Revenues from External Customers:
Critical Mission Solutions $ 1,317,109  $ 1,218,089  $ 3,845,927  $ 3,822,949 
People & Places Solutions 2,232,404  2,102,550  6,330,906  6,329,088 
PA Consulting 277,580  255,797  864,944  354,107 
              Total $ 3,827,093  $ 3,576,436  $ 11,041,777  $ 10,506,144 

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Segment Operating Profit:
Critical Mission Solutions $ 104,305  $ 108,131  $ 329,042  $ 332,133 
People & Places Solutions 210,046  205,324  592,883  603,654 
PA Consulting 51,448  56,791  182,850  84,708 

Total Segment Operating Profit 365,799  370,246  1,104,775  1,020,495 
Other Corporate Expenses (1) (89,887) (104,532) (284,479) (238,198)
Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges (2) (10,150) (1,968) (210,986) (345,725)

Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit 265,762  263,746  609,310  436,572 
Total Other Income (Expense), net (3) 6,353  19,648  (12,825) 88,650 

Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes $ 272,115  $ 283,394  $ 596,485  $ 525,222 
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(1) Other corporate expenses also included intangibles amortization of $51.6 million and $49.6 million for the three months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021,
respectively, and $146.9 million and $103.3 million for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021, respectively, with the comparative year-to-date period
increase mainly attributable to higher amortization from the PA Consulting investment.

(2) Included in the nine months ended July 1, 2022 is $91.3 million in charges related to the final pre-tax settlement of the Legacy CH2M Matter, net of previously recorded
reserves and $74.6 million of real estate impairment charges and $24.5 million in other transformation and other charges related to the Company's transformation
initiatives. Included in the nine months ended July 2, 2021 are $297.4 million of costs incurred in connection with the investment in PA Consulting, in part classified as
compensation costs.

(3) The three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 included a $13.9 million gain related to a cost method investment sold during the period. The nine months ended July 1,
2022 included a gain of $7.1 million related to a lease termination. The three and nine months ended July 2, 2021 include $38.7 million and $102.2 million, respectively,
in fair value adjustments related to our investment in Worley stock (including Worley stock dividends) and certain foreign currency revaluations relating to the ECR sale
and $1.0 million and $49.6 million, respectively, in fair value adjustments related to our investment in C3 stock, with both of these investments sold in fiscal 2021. The
nine months ended July 2, 2021 also includes $38.9 million related to impairment of our AWE ML investment.

(1) Included in other corporate expenses in the above table are costs and expenses, which relate to general corporate activities as well as
corporate-managed benefit and insurance programs. Such costs and expenses include: (i) those elements of SG&A expenses relating to the business as
a whole; (ii) those elements of our incentive compensation plans relating to corporate personnel whose other compensation costs are not allocated to the
LOBs; (iii) the amortization of intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations; (iv) the quarterly variances between the Company’s actual
costs of certain of its self-insured integrated risk and employee benefit programs and amounts charged to the LOBs; and (v) certain adjustments relating
to costs associated with the Company’s international defined benefit pension plans. In addition, other corporate expenses may also include from time to
time certain adjustments to contract margins (both positive and negative) associated with projects, as well as other items, where it has been determined
that such adjustments are not indicative of the performance of the related LOB.

See also the further description of results of operations for our operating segments in Item 2- Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
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Item 2.    Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

General

The purpose of this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations (“MD&A”) is to provide a narrative
analysis explaining the reasons for material changes in the Company’s (i) financial condition from the most recent fiscal year-end to July 1, 2022 and
(ii) results of operations during the current fiscal period(s) as compared to the corresponding period(s) of the preceding fiscal year. In order to better
understand such changes, readers of this MD&A should also read:

• The discussion of the critical and significant accounting policies used by the Company in preparing its consolidated financial statements.
The most current discussion of our critical accounting policies appears in Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations of our 2021 Form 10-K, and the most current discussion of our significant accounting policies
appears in Note 2- Significant Accounting Polices in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements of our 2021 Form 10-K;

• The Company’s fiscal 2021 audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in our 2021 Form 10-K; and

• Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations included in our 2021 Form 10-K.

In addition to historical information, this MD&A and other parts of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain forward-looking statements
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements are statements that do not directly relate to any
historical or current fact. When used herein, words such as “expects,” “anticipates,” “believes,” “seeks,” “estimates,” “plans,” “intends,” “future,” “will,”
“would,” “could,” “can,” “may,” and similar words are intended to identify forward-looking statements. Examples of forward-looking statements include, but
are not limited to, statements we make concerning the potential continued effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, financial condition and
results of operations and our expectations as to our future growth, prospects, financial outlook and business strategy for fiscal 2022 or future fiscal years,
the anticipated benefits of acquisitions and the strategic investment in PA Consulting, and our plans to implement a new holding company structure in the
fourth fiscal quarter of 2022. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. Although such statements are based on
management’s current estimates and/or expectations, and currently available competitive, financial, and economic data, forward-looking statements are
inherently uncertain, and you should not place undue reliance on such statements as actual results may differ materially. We caution the reader that
there are a variety of risks, uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from what is contained, projected or implied
by our forward-looking statements. Such factors include our ability to execute on our newly-announced three-year corporate strategy, including our ability
to invest in the tools needed to fully implement our strategy, competition from existing and future competitors in our target markets, our ability to achieve
the cost-savings and synergies contemplated by our recent acquisitions within the expected time frames and to successfully integrate acquired
businesses while retaining key personnel, the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, including the emergence and spread of variants of COVID-19, and any
resulting economic downturn on our results, prospects and opportunities, measures or restrictions imposed by governments and health officials in
response to the pandemic, the timing of the award of projects and funding under the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, financial market risks that
may affect the Company's funding obligations under defined benefit pension and postretirement plans, as well as general economic conditions, including
inflation and the actions taken by monetary authorities in response to inflation, changes in interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, changes in
capital markets, and geopolitical events and conflicts, among others. The impact of such matters includes, but is not limited to, the possible reduction in
demand for certain of our product solutions and services and the delay or abandonment of ongoing or anticipated projects due to the financial condition
of our clients and suppliers or to governmental budget constraints or changes to governmental budgetary priorities; the inability of our clients to meet
their payment obligations in a timely manner or at all; potential issues and risks related to a significant portion of our employees working remotely; illness,
travel restrictions and other workforce disruptions that have and could continue to negatively affect our supply chain and our ability to timely and
satisfactorily complete our clients’ projects; difficulties associated with retaining key employees or hiring additional employees; and the inability of
governments in certain of the countries in which we operate to effectively mitigate the financial or other impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on their
economies and workforces and our operations therein. The foregoing factors and potential future developments are inherently uncertain, unpredictable
and, in many cases, beyond our control. For a description of these and additional factors that may occur that could cause actual results to differ from our
forward-looking statements, see those listed and discussed in Item 1A, Risk Factors included in our 2021 Form 10-K and our Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q. We undertake no obligation to release publicly any revisions or updates to any forward-looking statements. We encourage you to read carefully
the risk factors, as well as the financial and business disclosures contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and in other documents we file from
time to time with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission ("the SEC").
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Impact of COVID-19 on Our Business

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization characterized the outbreak of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) as a global pandemic and
recommended certain containment and mitigation measures. On March 13, 2020, the United States declared a national emergency concerning the
outbreak, and the vast majority of states and many municipalities declared public health emergencies or took similar actions. Along with these
declarations, there were extraordinary and wide-ranging actions taken by international, federal, state and local public health and governmental
authorities to contain and combat outbreaks of COVID-19 in regions across the United States and around the world. These actions included quarantines
and “stay-at-home” or “shelter-in-place” orders, social distancing measures, travel restrictions, school closures and similar mandates for many individuals
in order to substantially restrict daily activities and orders for many businesses to curtail or cease normal operations unless their work is critical, essential
or life-sustaining. Although most jurisdictions in which we operate have lifted or eased such restrictions to various degrees, some jurisdictions have
subsequently reimposed restrictions to varying degrees in response to increased cases caused by variants of COVID-19. In addition, governments and
central banks in the United States and other countries in which we operate have periodically enacted fiscal and monetary stimulus and assistance
measures to counteract the economic impacts of COVID-19.

As it became clear that the pandemic was unparalleled in the rate of community spread, we took early, decisive action to put people first, help
flatten the curve and take care of our clients and communities. We successfully transitioned the vast majority of our employees to a remote working
environment to support physical distancing. Where the essential and mission-critical nature of our work requires us to maintain staff at certain sites or
locations, we worked closely with our clients and established project-specific plans designed to ensure the safety of our people and the integrity of our
operations. Using technology and optimizing our networks, we continue to offer flexible work scenarios for our people, and to deliver business continuity
for and continued collaboration with our clients.

Notwithstanding our continued critical operations, COVID-19 negatively impacted our business, and may have further adverse impacts, on our
operations, including those listed and discussed in Item 1A, Risk Factors included in our 2021 Form 10-K. Accordingly, at the height of the pandemic, we
temporarily reduced spending broadly across the Company, only proceeding with operating and capital spending that was critical. We had also
temporarily ceased all non-essential hiring and reduced discretionary expenses, including temporarily suspending certain employee benefits and
compensation through the end of fiscal 2020. Subsequently, we have adjusted our response according to the circumstances and local laws in the
jurisdictions in which we operate, including the emergence and spread of variants, such as the omicron variant. Looking ahead, we have developed
contingency plans if the situation further deteriorates or lasts longer than current expectations. We will continue to actively monitor the situation and may
take further actions that alter our business operations as may be necessary or appropriate for the health and safety of employees, contractors,
customers, suppliers or others or as required by international, federal, state or local authorities.

The impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic continue to be felt in our operating results as compared to business levels pre-pandemic, although not
significantly impacting the current fiscal quarter as compared to the corresponding quarter of the 2021 fiscal year. Further, for future periods, significant
uncertainty continues to exist concerning the magnitude, duration and impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic, including with regard to the effects on our
customers, customer demand for our services, disruptions to supply chains and labor forces and increasing inflationary pressures. Accordingly, actual
results for future fiscal periods could differ materially versus current expectations and current results and financial condition discussed herein may not be
indicative of future operating results and trends.

For a discussion of risks and uncertainties related to COVID-19, including the potential impacts on our business, financial condition and results
of operations, see Item 1A - Risk Factors contained in our 2021 Form 10-K.

Business Overview

At Jacobs, we’re challenging today to reinvent tomorrow by solving the world’s most critical problems for thriving cities, resilient environments,
mission-critical outcomes, operational advancement, scientific discovery and cutting-edge manufacturing.
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Revenue by Type (Q3 FY2022)

In the fourth quarter fiscal 2022, the Company intends to create a new holding company, Jacobs Solutions Inc., which will become the new
parent company of the Company. This will more closely align our public identity with a global technology-forward solutions company. Once completed,
the Company’s current stockholders will automatically become stockholders of Jacobs Solutions Inc., on a one-for-one basis, with the same number of
shares and same ownership percentage of the Company’s common stock that they held immediately prior to the transaction.

Lines of Business
The services we provide fall into the following two lines of business (LOB): Critical Mission Solutions (CMS) and People & Places Solutions

(P&PS). The LOBs and a majority investment in PA Consulting (PA) constitute the Company’s reportable segments. For additional information regarding
our segments, including information about our financial results by segment and financial results by geography, see Note 5 - Revenue Accounting for
Contracts of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical Mission Solutions (CMS)
Our Critical Mission Solutions line of business provides a full spectrum of cyber, data analytics, systems and software application integration

services and consulting, enterprise level operations and maintenance and mission IT, engineering and design, enterprise operations and maintenance,
program management, and other highly technical consulting solutions to government agencies as well as commercial customers and international
markets. Our representative clients include the U.S. Department of Defense (DoD), the Combatant Commands, the U.S. Intelligence Community, NASA,
the U.S. Department of Energy (DoE), U.K. Ministry of Defence, the U.K. Nuclear Decommissioning Authority (NDA) and the Australian Department of
Defence, as well as private sector customers mainly in the aerospace, automotive, energy and telecom sectors.

The U.S. government is the world’s largest buyer of technical services, and in fiscal 2021, approximately 74% of CMS’s revenue was earned
from serving the DoD, intelligence community and Federal Civilian governmental entities. Our international customers, which accounted for 18% of fiscal
2021 revenue, have also increased demand for our IT and cybersecurity solutions and nuclear projects, and the U.K. Ministry of Defence continues to
focus on accelerating its strategic innovative and technology focused initiatives.
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People & Places Solutions (P&PS)
Jacobs' People & Places Solutions line of business provides end-to-end solutions for our clients’ most complex challenges - whether climate

change, energy transition, connected mobility, integrated water management, smart cities or vaccine manufacturing. In doing so, we incorporate the full
spectrum of data science and technology-enabled toolsets within a human-centric solution development and delivery framework. We embrace inclusive
engagement of partners and stakeholders and generate enduring social equity/value through consulting, planning, architecture, design and engineering
project outcomes, as well as long-term operation of facilities and infrastructure. Solutions may be delivered as standalone engagements or through
comprehensive program management that integrates disparate workstreams to yield additional benefits not attainable through project-by-project
implementation. We also provide progressive design-build and construction management at-risk delivery solutions in targeted markets.

Our clients include national, state and local government in the U.S., Canada, Europe, U.K., Middle East, Australia, New Zealand and Asia, as
well as multinational private sector clients throughout the world.

PA Consulting
In fiscal 2021, Jacobs invested in a 65% stake in PA Consulting, the consultancy that is Bringing Ingenuity to Life. Its diverse teams of experts

combine innovative thinking and breakthrough use of technologies to progress further, faster. PA Consulting’s clients adapt and transform and achieve
enduring results. An innovation and transformation consultancy, PA's roughly 3,300 employees work across seven sectors: consumer and manufacturing,
defense and security, energy and utilities, financial services, government, health and life sciences, and transport. PA Consulting people are strategists,
innovators, designers, consultants, digital experts, scientists, engineers and technologists. The team operates globally from offices across the U.K., U.S.,
Nordics and the Netherlands.

PA Consulting offers end-to-end innovation, accelerating new growth ideas from concept, through design, development, and to commercial
success, and revitalizing organizations, building the leadership, culture, systems and processes to make innovation a reality. PA Consulting has a diverse
mix of private and public sector clients, from global household names to start-ups, to national and local public services.
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Results of Operations for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021
(in thousands, except per share information)

For the Three Months Ended For the Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Revenues $ 3,827,093  $ 3,576,436  $ 11,041,777  $ 10,506,144 
Direct cost of contracts (3,002,618) (2,759,501) (8,550,418) (8,290,137)
Gross profit 824,475  816,935  2,491,359  2,216,007 
Selling, general and administrative expenses (558,713) (553,189) (1,882,049) (1,779,435)
Operating Profit 265,762  263,746  609,310  436,572 
Other Income (Expense):

Interest income 1,042  1,001  2,924  2,733 
Interest expense (26,129) (20,011) (67,551) (52,788)
Miscellaneous income, net 31,440  38,658  51,802  138,705 

Total other income (expense), net 6,353  19,648  (12,825) 88,650 
Earnings from Continuing Operations Before Taxes 272,115  283,394  596,485  525,222 
Income Tax Expense from Continuing Operations (59,491) (109,186) (121,545) (175,437)
Net Earnings of the Group from Continuing Operations 212,624  174,208  474,940  349,785 
Net (Loss) Earnings of the Group from Discontinued Operations (343) 384  (576) 11,690 
Net Earnings of the Group 212,281  174,592  474,364  361,475 
Net Earnings Attributable to Noncontrolling Interests from Continuing
Operations (8,773) (9,182) (28,286) (29,366)
Net (Earnings) Loss Attributable to Redeemable Noncontrolling interests (7,525) 384  (27,246) 101,776 
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs from Continuing Operations 196,326  165,410  419,408  422,195 
Net Earnings Attributable to Jacobs $ 195,983  $ 165,794  $ 418,832  $ 433,885 
Net Earnings Per Share:

Basic Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 1.53  $ 0.83  $ 3.25  $ 2.80 
Basic Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 0.09 
Basic Earnings Per Share $ 1.53  $ 0.83  $ 3.25  $ 2.89 

Diluted Net Earnings from Continuing Operations Per Share $ 1.52  $ 0.82  $ 3.23  $ 2.78 
Diluted Net Earnings from Discontinued Operations Per Share $ —  $ —  $ —  $ 0.09 
Diluted Earnings Per Share $ 1.52  $ 0.83  $ 3.23  $ 2.87 
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Overview – Three and Nine Month Periods Ended July 1, 2022

Net earnings attributable to the Company from continuing operations for the third fiscal quarter ended July 1, 2022 were $196.3 million (or $1.52
per diluted share), an increase of $30.9 million, from net earnings of $165.4 million (or $0.82 per diluted share) for the corresponding period last year.
While operating profit levels were consistent for the respective three-month periods of fiscal 2022 and 2021, third quarter fiscal 2022 Other income
(expense), net, of $6.4 million was lower by $13.2 million versus third quarter fiscal 2021 amounts of $19.6 million. Third quarter fiscal 2022 amounts
benefited from a $13.9 million pre-tax gain related to a cost method investment sold during the period, approximately $8 million in higher foreign
exchange gains, as well as other miscellaneous income items quarter over quarter, partly offset by unfavorable impacts of higher net interest expense
and lower pension income compared to the prior year quarter. Third quarter fiscal 2021 amounts included $38.7 million in pre-tax fair value gains, related
currency revaluations and dividends recorded in miscellaneous income (expense), net, associated with our former investment in Worley stock, the sale
of which was completed in fourth quarter 2021. Our reported net earnings for the current year quarter also benefited from lower income taxes of
$49.6 million compared to the fiscal 2021 period, with lower effective tax rates in the current quarter due mainly to the absence of fiscal 2021 income tax
charges of $30.8 million associated with a statutory tax rate increase in the UK and certain nondeductible compensation related charges associated with
the Company's PA Consulting investment, as well as benefiting from other favorable tax impacts during the current quarter. Additionally, redeemable
noncontrolling interests was $7.1 million higher in the current quarter due to favorable net earnings results in our PA Consulting investment compared to
the prior year quarter. The Company’s reported earnings per share for the third quarter fiscal 2021 was impacted unfavorably by $(0.44) related to an
allocation update between preferred and common shares for the PA Consulting investment as required under U.S. GAAP. This per share impact had no
impact to the total consideration of the transaction and had no impact on the Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows; see Note
15 - PA Consulting Business Combination in the consolidated financial statements.

For the nine months ended July 1, 2022, net earnings attributable to the Company from continuing operations were $419.4 million (or $3.23 per
diluted share) and overall consistent in comparison to $422.2 million (or $2.78 per diluted share) for the corresponding period last year. The current year
results reflected higher year-over-year operating profit of $172.7 million, which benefited from the full year-to-date impact of the Company's PA
Consulting investment acquired on March 2, 2021 and the absence of one-time deal and related other charges associated with this investment of
approximately $297 million, including one-time compensation charges of $261 million in the 2021 fiscal period. These favorable operating profit items
were offset in part by higher year-over-year Restructuring and other charges and transaction costs in the current year, including pre-tax settlement
charges associated with the Legacy CH2M Matter of $91.3 million and $74.6 million associated with the Company's transformation initiatives relating to
real estate rescaling (see Note 18 - Restructuring and Other Charges) and increases in intangibles amortization costs of $43.6 million, due mainly to full
year impacts of acquired intangible assets from the PA Consulting investment. Other income (expense), net was unfavorable $101.5 million for the
current year-to-date period compared to corresponding fiscal 2021 amounts, due mainly to pre-tax fair value gains associated with our former
investments in Worley stock (net of Worley stock dividend and related foreign exchange items) and C3 of $102.1 million and $49.6 million, respectively,
as well as higher interest expense of $14.8 million in the current year compared to the prior year. Current year-to-date fiscal 2022 other income
(expense) results benefited from the absence of the prior year $38.9 million impairment of our investment in AWE Management Ltd. ("AWE ML") as well
as the $13.9 million gain on sale of a cost investment and other favorable items during the current fiscal 2022 year-to-date period. Income taxes were
lower in the current year by $53.9 million, benefiting from lower effective tax rates in fiscal 2022, due primarily to the absence of fiscal 2021 additional
income taxes attributable to the tax rate increase in the UK of $30.8 million and certain nondeductible compensation related charges associated with the
Company's PA Consulting investment combined with current year-to-date tax benefits of $15.4 million related to the release of valuation allowance on
foreign tax credits and $9.1 million related to the removal of intercompany withholding tax. Finally, unfavorable year-over-year net earnings impacts
associated with redeemable noncontrolling interests of $129 million were attributable mainly to the absence of the 2021 period redeemable
noncontrolling interests share of $101.8 million in connection with the one-time compensation charges incurred in the PA Consulting investment
mentioned above, offset in part by the full year-to-date effects of the redeemable noncontrolling interests share of PA Consulting's operating results in
fiscal 2022. Fiscal 2021 earnings per share was impacted by the $(0.44) per share impact of the value allocation update between preferred and common
shares for the PA Consulting investment.

For discussion of discontinued operations, see Note 17 - Sale of Energy, Chemicals and Resources ("ECR") Business.
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On February 4, 2022, the Company acquired StreetLight Data, Inc., ("StreetLight"). On November 19, 2021, a subsidiary of Jacobs acquired
BlackLynx. For further discussion, see Note 16 - Other Business Combinations.

On March 2, 2021, Jacobs completed the strategic investment of a 65% interest in PA Consulting. For further discussion, see Note 15 - PA
Consulting Business Combination.

On November 24, 2020, a subsidiary of Jacobs completed the acquisition of Buffalo Group. For further discussion, see Note 16 - Other Business
Combinations.

Consolidated Results of Operations

Revenues for the third fiscal quarter of 2022 were $3.83 billion, an increase of $250.7 million, or 7.0%, from $3.58 billion for the corresponding
period last year. For the nine months ended July 1, 2022, revenues were $11.04 billion, an increase of $535.6 million, or 5.1%, from $10.51 billion for the
corresponding period last year. Revenue increases for the year over year periods were due mainly to fiscal 2022 incremental revenues from the PA
Consulting investment and the StreetLight and BlackLynx acquisitions, as well as benefits from increased spending in our U.S. government business
sector client base. These increases in revenues for the current year-to-date period were partially offset by declines in pass-through revenues in our
P&PS advanced facilities business. Additionally, the nine months ended July 1, 2022 was unfavorably impacted by certain large contract wind downs in
the U.S. Also, revenue was unfavorably impacted by foreign currency translation of $130.1 million and $176.8 million for the three and nine months
ended July 1, 2022, respectively, in our international businesses as compared to favorable impacts of $100.2 million and $213.1 million in the
corresponding periods last year.

Pass-through costs included in revenues for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 amounted to $635.4 million and $1.67 billion,
respectively, an increase of $23.4 million and a decrease of $165.9 million, or 3.8% and (9.0)%, respectively, from $612.0 million and $1.84 billion from
the corresponding periods last year.

Gross profit for the third quarter of 2022 was $824.5 million, an increase of $7.5 million, or 0.9%, from $816.9 million from the corresponding
period last year. Our gross profit margins were 21.5% and 22.8% for the three months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021, respectively, with these
margin differences being mainly attributable to lower utilization trends mainly in our PA Consulting business, partly offset by favorable impacts from our
recent StreetLight and BlackLynx acquisitions as well as benefits from increased spending by customers in the U.S. government business sector for the
current quarter period. Gross profit for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 was $2.49 billion, an increase of $275.4 million, or 12.4%, from $2.22 billion
from the corresponding period last year, due in part to incremental gross profit from recent business acquisitions (mainly the full year results of PA
Consulting). Our gross profit margins were 22.6% and 21.1% for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021, respectively, with benefits from
the similar favorable margins from recent acquisitions mentioned above and favorable impacts from the business results of our recent PA Consulting
investment on a year-to-date basis and increased spending in the U.S. government business sector noted above. The increases in gross profit during the
three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 were partially offset by the impacts from the recent large contract wind downs in the U.S. mentioned above,
as well as increases in labor costs associated with moderation of COVID-19 mitigation efforts and a competitive labor market along with inflation impacts
and incremental investments to support projected top-line growth.

See Segment Financial Information discussion for further information on the Company’s results of operations at the operating segment.

SG&A expenses for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 were $558.7 million and $1.88 billion, respectively, increases of $5.5 million
and $102.6 million, or 1.0% and 5.8%, from $553.2 million and $1.78 billion for the corresponding periods last year. While the three month periods'
results were comparatively consistent, the nine months ended results for fiscal 2022 were impacted by incremental SG&A expenses from recent
business acquisitions (mainly PA Consulting) of $150.0 million (including $43.6 million in additional amortization expense for acquired intangibles and
excluding the compensation related charge discussed below), respectively, due to the prior comparable periods including PA Consulting activity only for
the partial periods subsequent to the March 2, 2021 investment date. Additionally, Restructuring and other charges and transaction costs for the year-to-
date period of 2022 included $91.3 million attributable to the final pre-tax settlement of the Legacy CH2M Matter, which is further discussed in Note 19-
Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments and $74.6 million in costs associated in part with the Company's transformation
initiatives relating to real estate. Also, the current 2022 periods SG&A expenses were impacted by higher personnel costs associated with investments in
advance of expected growth anticipated in late 2022
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and 2023. As noted above, the prior year-to-date period included Restructuring and other charges of $261 million for pre-tax costs incurred in connection
with the investment in PA Consulting, in part classified as compensation costs reported in selling, general and administrative expenses. Lastly, SG&A
expenses benefited from favorable foreign exchange impacts of $26.4 million and $36.8 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended July 1,
2022 as compared to unfavorable impacts of $19.3 million and $66.7 million for the corresponding periods last year.

Net interest expense for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 was $25.1 million and $64.6 million, respectively, an increase of $6.1
million and $14.6 million from $19.0 million and $50.1 million for the corresponding periods last year. The increase in net interest expense for the three
and nine month periods was due to higher levels of debt outstanding due to the funding of the StreetLight and BlackLynx acquisitions and increased
borrowings associated with the payment of the Legacy CH2M Matter settlement in the current fiscal quarter, in addition to higher interest rates.
Additionally, the nine month period year over year is also impacted by higher levels of average debt outstanding related to the funding of the PA
Consulting investment.

Miscellaneous income (expense), net for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 was $31.4 million and $51.8 million, respectively, in
comparison to $38.7 million and $138.7 million for the corresponding periods last year. The $7.2 million decrease from the prior three-month comparable
period was due primarily to impacts in the prior year periods of pre-tax unrealized gains of $38.7 million associated with our former investment in Worley
stock (including the Worley stock dividend) and certain foreign currency revaluations relating to the ECR sale, which was sold during fiscal year 2021.
The decrease of $86.9 million from the prior year-to-date comparable period is attributable to nine months of pre-tax fair value gains of $102.2 million
and $49.6 million in the Company's previously mentioned investment holdings in Worley (including the Worley stock dividend) which includes impacts of
certain foreign currency revaluations related to the ECR sale and C3, respectively. The three and nine month fiscal 2022 periods benefited primarily from
a $13.9 million pre-tax gain related to a cost method investment sold during the period. Additionally, the corresponding prior year periods included other-
than-temporary impairment charges on our investment in AWE ML of $5.7 million and $38.9 million, respectively.

The Company’s effective tax rates from continuing operations for the three months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 were 21.9% and 38.5%,
respectively, with the decrease primarily due to the absence of a $30.8 million expense related to a change in tax rate applied to deferred tax assets in
the United Kingdom and certain nondeductible compensation related charges associated with the Company's PA Consulting investment in the three
months ended July 2, 2021, as well as a current period benefit of $9.1 million the Company recognized due to the reversal of a withholding tax accrual
on certain intercompany loans, partly offset by increases in permanent book/tax adjustments, state taxes, and foreign inclusions for the three month
period in fiscal 2022. Additionally, a $15.6 million payment was made during the current quarter related to an amendment of an Australia tax return, which
resulted in the removal of the associated uncertain tax position from the Consolidated Balance Sheet. This payment had no impact on the current quarter
income tax provision or effective tax rate.

The Company's effective tax rates from continuing operations for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 were 20.4% and 33.4%,
respectively, with the decrease primarily due to a current year tax benefit of $15.4 million related to the release of valuation allowance on foreign tax
credits and $9.1 million related to the reversal of intercompany withholding tax noted above, as well as the absence of prior year expenses related to the
United Kingdom’s change in tax rate mentioned above and certain non-deductible pre-tax compensation charges associated with our investment in PA
Consulting, partly offset by the absence of the benefit from the change in the Company’s assertion about indefinite reinvestment of certain foreign
unremitted earnings in India in fiscal 2021.

The amount of income taxes the Company pays is subject to ongoing audits by tax jurisdictions around the world. In the normal course of
business, the Company is subject to examination by tax authorities throughout the world, including such major jurisdictions as Australia, Canada, India,
the Netherlands, the United Kingdom and the United States. Our estimate of the potential outcome of any uncertain tax issue is subject to our
assessment of the relevant risks, facts, and circumstances existing at the time. The Company believes that it has adequately provided for reasonably
foreseeable outcomes related to these matters. However, future results may include favorable or unfavorable adjustments to our estimated tax liabilities
in the period the assessments are made or resolved, which may impact our effective tax rate.
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Segment Financial Information

The following table provides selected financial information for our operating segments and includes a reconciliation of segment operating profit to
total U.S. GAAP operating profit from continuing operations by including certain corporate-level expenses, Restructuring and other charges and
transaction and integration costs (in thousands).

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Revenues from External Customers:
Critical Mission Solutions $ 1,317,109  $ 1,218,089  $ 3,845,927  $ 3,822,949 
People & Places Solutions 2,232,404  2,102,550  6,330,906  6,329,088 
PA Consulting 277,580  255,797  864,944  354,107 
Total $ 3,827,093  $ 3,576,436  $ 11,041,777  $ 10,506,144 

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Segment Operating Profit:
Critical Mission Solutions $ 104,305  $ 108,131  $ 329,042  $ 332,133 
People & Places Solutions 210,046  205,324  592,883  603,654 
PA Consulting 51,448  56,791  182,850  84,708 

Total Segment Operating Profit 365,799  370,246  1,104,775  1,020,495 
Other Corporate Expenses (1) (89,887) (104,532) (284,479) (238,198)
Restructuring, Transaction and Other Charges (2) (10,150) (1,968) (210,986) (345,725)

Total U.S. GAAP Operating Profit 265,762  263,746  609,310  436,572 
Total Other Income (Expense), net (3) 6,353  19,648  (12,825) 88,650 

Earnings Before Taxes from Continuing Operations $ 272,115  $ 283,394  $ 596,485  $ 525,222 

(1) Other corporate expenses also included intangibles amortization of $51.6 million and $49.6 million for the three months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021,
respectively, and $146.9 million and $103.3 million for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021, respectively, with the comparative year-to-date
period increase mainly attributable to higher amortization from the PA Consulting investment.

(2) Included in the nine months ended July 1, 2022 is $91.3 million in charges related to the final pre-tax settlement of the Legacy CH2M Matter, net of previously
recorded reserves and $74.6 million of real estate impairment charges and $24.5 million in other transformation and other charges related to the Company's
transformation initiatives. Included in the nine months ended July 2, 2021 are $297.4 million of costs incurred in connection with the investment in PA
Consulting, in part classified as compensation costs.

(3) The three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 included a $13.9 million gain related to a cost method investment sold during the period. The nine months
ended July 1, 2022 included a gain of $7.1 million related to a lease termination. The three and nine months ended July 2, 2021 include $38.7 million and
$102.2 million, respectively, in fair value adjustments related to our investment in Worley stock (including Worley stock dividends) and certain foreign currency
revaluations relating to the ECR sale and $1.0 million and $49.6 million, respectively, in fair value adjustments related to our investment in C3 stock, with both
of these investments sold in fiscal 2021. The nine months ended July 2, 2021 also includes $38.9 million related to impairment of our AWE ML investment.

Critical Mission Solutions
Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021
Revenue $ 1,317,109  $ 1,218,089  $ 3,845,927  $ 3,822,949 
Operating Profit $ 104,305  $ 108,131  $ 329,042  $ 332,133 
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Critical Mission Solutions (CMS) segment revenues for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 were $1.32 billion and $3.85 billion,
respectively, an increase of $99.0 million and $23.0 million, or 8.1% and 0.6%, from $1.22 billion and $3.82 billion for the corresponding periods last year.
During the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022, revenue benefited from incremental revenue from recent acquisitions in addition to recent contract
awards including the Department of Energy Nuclear remediation program. Revenue during the nine months ended July 1, 2022 was impacted by several
large contracts winding down in the U.S and labor supply challenges. Also, impacts on revenues from unfavorable foreign currency translation were
approximately $26.9 million and $34.9 million for the three and nine-month periods ended July 1, 2022, respectively, compared to $26.6 million and
$54.2 million in favorable impacts in the corresponding prior year periods.

Operating profit for the segment was $104.3 million and $329.0 million, respectively, for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022,
representing slight decreases of $3.8 million and $3.1 million, or (3.5)% and (0.9)%, from $108.1 million and $332.1 million for the corresponding periods
last year. Operating profit levels were generally consistent with prior year comparable periods presented, with recent U.S. government contract awards
benefiting from higher margins and offsetting impacts from the large contract wind downs mentioned above. Impacts on operating profit from unfavorable
foreign currency translation were approximately $3.9 million and $5.0 million for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022, compared to favorable
impacts of approximately $4.3 million and $8.8 million in the corresponding prior year periods.

People & Places Solutions

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Revenue $ 2,232,404  $ 2,102,550  $ 6,330,906  $ 6,329,088 
Operating Profit $ 210,046  $ 205,324  $ 592,883  $ 603,654 

Revenues for the People & Places Solutions (P&PS) segment for the three months ended July 1, 2022 was $2.23 billion and $6.33 billion,
respectively, an increase of $129.9 million and $1.8 million, or 6.2% and —%, from $2.10 billion and $6.33 billion for the corresponding periods last year.
The increase in revenue for the three months ended July 1, 2022 was primarily driven by growth in our advanced facilities business as compared to the
prior year corresponding period. The increase in revenue for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 was primarily due to higher fee-based revenue from our
advanced facilities and international businesses offset in part by lower pass through revenues across the business as compared to the prior year
corresponding period. Foreign currency translation had a $69.2 million and $103.8 million unfavorable impact on revenues in our international
businesses for the three and nine-month periods ended July 1, 2022, respectively as compared to favorable impacts of $73.6 million and $158.9 million
in the corresponding prior year periods.

Operating profit for the segment for the three and nine month periods ended July 1, 2022 was $210.0 million and $592.9 million, respectively, an
increase of $4.7 million for the three-month period and a decrease of $10.8 million for the nine-month period, or 2.3% and (1.8)% from $205.3 million and
$603.7 million for the corresponding periods last year. The year-over-year increase in operating profit for the three months ended July 1, 2022 was driven
by the revenue growth mentioned above but partially offset by higher personnel costs associated with investments in advance of expected growth
anticipated in late 2022 and 2023. For the nine months ended July 1, 2022, operating profit decreased year-over-year due mainly to similar cost
increases mentioned above in the first half of the year. Foreign currency translation had a $11.8 million and $18.7 million unfavorable impact on
operating profit in our international businesses for the three and nine-month periods ended July 1, 2022, respectively as compared to favorable impacts
of $13.9 million and $27.7 million in the corresponding prior year periods.

Page 49



PA Consulting

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021 July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021

Revenue $ 277,580  $ 255,797  $ 864,944  $ 354,107 
Operating Profit $ 51,448  $ 56,791  $ 182,850  $ 84,708 

Revenues for the PA Consulting segment for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 were $277.6 million and $864.9 million, respectively,
an increase of $21.8 million and $510.8 million, or 8.5% and 144.3%, from $255.8 million and $354.1 million for the corresponding periods last year. The
increase in revenue for the three months ended July 1, 2022 was primarily driven by growth in the U.K. business. The increase in revenue for the year-
to-date period in the current year was due mainly to the full year-to-date impact of revenues from our March 2, 2021 investment in PA Consulting.
Foreign currency translation had a $34.0 million and $38.1 million unfavorable impact on revenues in our international businesses for the three and nine
months ended July 1, 2022, respectively and a favorable impact of $29.3 million for the corresponding prior year quarter and year-to-date periods.

Operating profit for the segment for the three and nine months ended July 2, 2021 was $51.4 million and $182.9 million, respectively, a decrease
of $5.3 million and an increase of $98.1 million, or (9.4)% and 115.9%, from $56.8 million and $84.7 million, respectively, for the corresponding periods
last year. The decrease in operating profit for the three months ended July 1, 2022 was driven by normalization of utilization rates during the quarter. The
increase in operating profit for the year-to-date period was also due mainly to the full year-to-date impact of operating profit from our March 2, 2021
investment in PA Consulting. Foreign currency translation had a $6.7 million and $8.1 million unfavorable impact on operating profit in our international
businesses for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 and a favorable impact of $6.4 million for the corresponding prior quarter and year-to-date
periods.

Other Corporate Expenses

Other corporate expenses for the three and nine months ended July 1, 2022 were $89.9 million and $284.5 million, respectively, a decrease of
$14.6 million and an increase of $46.3 million from $104.5 million and $238.2 million for the corresponding periods last year. This decrease during the
three month period was due to decreases in real estate related costs, as well as other department spend decreases due in part to the Company's
transformation initiatives. The increase during the current year-to-date period was primarily due to higher intangible amortization expense from the
StreetLight and BlackLynx acquisitions and the PA Consulting investment, as well as impacts from higher Company benefit program costs.

Included in other corporate expenses in the above table are costs and expenses which relate to general corporate activities as well as corporate-
managed benefit and insurance programs. Such costs and expenses include: (i) those elements of SG&A expenses relating to the business as a whole;
(ii) those elements of our incentive compensation plans relating to corporate personnel whose other compensation costs are not allocated to the LOBs;
(iii) the amortization of intangible assets acquired as part of business combinations; (iv) the quarterly variances between the Company’s actual costs of
certain of its self-insured integrated risk and employee benefit programs and amounts charged to the LOBs; and (v) certain adjustments relating to costs
associated with the Company’s international defined benefit pension plans. In addition, other corporate expenses may also include from time to time
certain adjustments to contract margins (both positive and negative) associated with projects, as well as other items, where it has been determined that
such adjustments are not indicative of the performance of the related LOB.

Restructuring and Other Charges

See Note 18- Restructuring and Other Charges for information on the Company’s activity relating to restructuring and other charges.
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Backlog Information

We include in backlog the total dollar amount of revenues we expect to record in the future as a result of performing work under contracts that
have been awarded to us. Our policy with respect to Operations & Maintenance ("O&M") contracts, however, is to include in backlog the amount of
revenues we expect to receive for one succeeding year, regardless of the remaining life of the contract. For national government programs (other than
national government O&M contracts, which are subject to the same policy applicable to all other O&M contracts), our policy is to include in backlog the
full contract award, whether funded or unfunded, excluding option periods. Because of variations in the nature, size, expected duration, funding
commitments, and the scope of services required by our contracts, the timing of when backlog will be recognized as revenues can vary greatly between
individual contracts.

Consistent with industry practice, substantially all of our contracts are subject to cancellation or termination at the option of the client, including
our U.S. government work. While management uses all information available to determine backlog, at any given time our backlog is subject to changes
in the scope of services to be provided as well as increases or decreases in costs relating to the contracts included therein. Backlog is not necessarily an
indicator of future revenues.

Because certain contracts (e.g., contracts relating to large Engineering, Procurement & Construction ("EPC") projects as well as national
government programs) can cause large increases to backlog in the fiscal period in which we recognize the award, and because many of our contracts
require us to provide services that span over several fiscal quarters (and sometimes over fiscal years), we have presented our backlog on a year-over-
year basis, rather than on a sequential, quarter-over-quarter basis.

The following table summarizes our backlog at July 1, 2022 and July 2, 2021 (in millions):

July 1, 2022 July 2, 2021
Critical Mission Solutions $ 10,222  $ 9,565 
People & Places Solutions 17,542  15,557 
PA Consulting 326  314 

            Total $ 28,090  $ 25,436 

The increase in backlog in Critical Mission Solutions (CMS) from July 2, 2021 was primarily driven by success in closing on a number of key
opportunities in the U.S government space.

The increase in backlog in People & Places Solutions (P&PS) from July 2, 2021 was primarily driven by new business awards in our advanced
facilities business.

The PA Consulting backlog was consistent and in line with the prior year comparable period backlog.

Consolidated backlog differs from the Company’s remaining performance obligations as defined by ASC 606 primarily because of our national
government contracts (other than national government O&M contracts). Our policy is to generally include in backlog the full contract award, whether
funded or unfunded excluding the option periods while our remaining performance obligations represent a measure of the total dollar value of work to be
performed on contracts awarded and in progress. Additionally, the Company includes our proportionate share of backlog related to unconsolidated joint
ventures which is not included in our remaining performance obligations.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At July 1, 2022, our principal sources of liquidity consisted of $1.10 billion in cash and cash equivalents and $1.08 billion of available borrowing
capacity under our $2.25 billion revolving credit agreement (the "Revolving Credit Facility"). We finance much of our operations and growth through cash
generated by our operations.

The amount of cash and cash equivalents at July 1, 2022 represented an increase of $88.0 million from $1.01 billion at October 1, 2021, the
reasons for which are described below.
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Our net cash flow provided by operations of $197.2 million during the nine months ended July 1, 2022 was unfavorable by $326.4 million in
comparison to the cash flow provided by operations of $523.6 million for the corresponding prior year period. The year-over-year decrease in cash from
operations is primarily attributable to the Legacy CH2M Matter cash settlement paid in the current fiscal quarter.

Our net cash used for investing activities for the nine months ended was $491.2 million, compared to cash used for investing activities of $1.72
billion in the corresponding prior year period, with this change due primarily to the acquisitions of StreetLight and BlackLynx in the current year and our
investment in PA Consulting and acquisition of Buffalo Group in the prior year.

Our net cash provided by financing activities of $461.8 million for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 resulted mainly from net proceeds from
borrowings of $799.2 million primarily in connection with the StreetLight and BlackLynx acquisitions, partly offset by cash used for share repurchases of
$250.7 million and $86.6 million in dividends to shareholders and $16.1 million in dividends to noncontrolling interest holders. Cash provided by financing
activities in the corresponding prior year period was $1.28 billion, due primarily to net proceeds from borrowings of $1.42 billion, offset by cash used for
share repurchases of $24.9 million and $79.8 million in dividends to shareholders and $40.1 million in net dividends to (contributions from) noncontrolling
interest holders.

At July 1, 2022, the Company had approximately $220.5 million in cash and cash equivalents held in the U.S. and $881.8 million held outside of
the U.S. (primarily in the U.K., the Eurozone, Australia, India, Japan and the United Arab Emirates), which is used primarily for funding operations in
those regions. Other than the tax cost of repatriating funds to the U.S. (see Note 7 - Income Taxes of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in our 2021 Form 10-K), there are no material impediments to repatriating these funds to the U.S.

The Company had $286.9 million in letters of credit outstanding at July 1, 2022. Of this amount, $1.3 million was issued under the Revolving
Credit Facility and $285.6 million was issued under separate, committed and uncommitted letter-of-credit facilities.

On April 12, 2022, the Company paid cash of AUD640 million, or approximately $475 million using mid-April 2022 exchange rates, which
represents the final pre-tax settlement of Legacy CH2M Matter. For more information please refer to Note 19 - Commitments and Contingencies and
Derivative Financial Instruments.

Page 52



On February 4, 2022, the Company acquired StreetLight Data, Inc. ("StreetLight"). StreetLight is a pioneer of mobility analytics who uses its data
and machine learning resources to shed light on mobility and enable users to solve complex transportation problems. The Company paid total base
consideration of approximately $190.8 million in cash, and issued $0.9 million in equity and $5.2 million in in-the-money stock options to the former
owners of StreetLight. The Company also paid off StreetLight's debt of approximately $1.0 million simultaneously with the consummation of the
acquisition.

On November 19, 2021, a subsidiary of Jacobs acquired all outstanding shares of common stock of BlackLynx, a provider of high-performance
software, to complement Jacobs' portfolio of cyber, intelligence and digital solutions. The Company paid total base consideration of approximately
$235.4 million in cash to the former owners of BlackLynx. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company also paid off BlackLynx's debt of
approximately $5.3 million simultaneously with the consummation of the acquisition.

On March 2, 2021, Jacobs completed the strategic investment of a 65% interest in PA Consulting, a UK-based leading innovation and
transformation consulting firm. The total consideration paid by the Company was $1.7 billion, funded through cash on hand, proceeds from a new term
loan and draws on the Company's existing revolving credit facility. Further, in connection with the transaction, an additional $261 million in investment
proceeds had not yet been distributed at the investment date due to continuing employment requirements of associated management owners.
Consequently, this amount represented compensation expense incurred related to the investment that was expensed subsequent to the acquisition date,
and was reflected in selling, general and administrative expense and cash from operations for the fiscal year ended October 1, 2021. The remaining 35%
interest was acquired by PA Consulting employees, whose redeemable noncontrolling interests had a fair value of $582.4 million on the closing date,
including subsequent purchase accounting adjustments. PA Consulting is accounted for as a consolidated subsidiary and as a separate operating
segment under U.S. GAAP accounting rules.

On January 20, 2021, the Company entered into an unsecured delayed draw term loan facility (the “2021 Term Loan Facility”) with a syndicate of
financial institutions as lenders. Under the 2021 Term Loan Facility, the Company borrowed an aggregate principal amount of $200.0 million and £650.0
million. The proceeds of the term loans were used primarily to fund the investment in PA Consulting. The 2021 Term Loan Facility contains affirmative
and negative covenants and events of default customary for financings of this type that are consistent with those included in the Revolving Credit Facility
and the 2020 Term Loan Facility.

On November 24, 2020, a subsidiary of Jacobs completed the acquisition of Buffalo Group, a leader in advanced cyber and intelligence
solutions, which allows Jacobs to further expand its cyber and intelligence solutions offerings to government clients. The Company paid total
consideration of $190.1 million, which was comprised of approximately $182.4 million in cash to the former owners of Buffalo Group and contingent
consideration of $7.7 million, The contingent consideration was subsequently recognized as an offset to selling, general and administrative expense
when it was determined no amounts would be paid. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company assumed the Buffalo Group's debt of approximately
$7.7 million. The Company repaid all of the assumed Buffalo Group debt by the end of the first fiscal quarter of 2021. The Company has recorded its final
purchase price allocation associated with the acquisition, which is summarized in Note 16- Other Business Combinations.

We believe we have adequate liquidity and capital resources to fund our projected cash requirements for the next twelve months based on the
liquidity provided by our cash and cash equivalents on hand, our borrowing capacity and our continuing cash from operations. We further believe that our
financial resources and discretionary spend controls will allow us to continue managing the negative impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business
operations for the foreseeable future. We continue to evaluate the impact of the pandemic on our business and reassess accordingly.

We were in compliance with all of our debt covenants at July 1, 2022.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

We do not enter into derivative financial instruments for trading, speculation or other similar purposes that would expose the Company to market
risk. In the normal course of business, our results of operations are exposed to risks associated with fluctuations in interest rates and currency exchange
rates.
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Interest Rate Risk

Please see the Note 12 - Borrowings in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing under Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q, which is incorporated herein by reference, for a discussion of the Revolving Credit Facility, Term Loan Facilities and Note Purchase
Agreement.

Our Revolving Credit Facility, Term Loan Facilities and certain other debt obligations are subject to variable rate interest which could be
adversely affected by an increase in interest rates. As of July 1, 2022, we had an aggregate of $3.08 billion in outstanding borrowings under our
Revolving Credit Facility and Term Loan Facilities. Interest on amounts borrowed under these agreements is subject to adjustment based on the
Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio (as defined in the credit agreements governing the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term Loan Facilities).
Depending on the Company’s Consolidated Leverage Ratio, borrowings denominated in U.S. dollars under the Revolving Credit Facility and the Term
Loan Facilities bear interest at a Eurocurrency rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and 1.625% or a base rate plus a margin of between 0.0% and
0.625% including applicable margins while borrowings denominated in British pounds under these respective facilities bear interest at an adjusted
SONIA rate plus a margin of between 0.875% and 1.625%. Additionally, if our Consolidated Leverage Ratio exceeds a certain amount, the interest on the
Senior Notes may increase by 75 basis points. However, as discussed in Note 19 - Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial
Instruments, we are party to swap agreements with an aggregate notional value of $894.5 million to convert the variable rate interest based liabilities
associated with a corresponding amount of our debt into fixed interest rate liabilities, leaving $2.18 billion in principal amount subject to variable interest
rate risk.

For the nine months ended July 1, 2022, our weighted average borrowings that are subject to floating rate exposure were approximately $2.18
billion. If floating interest rates had increased by 1.00%, our interest expense for the nine months ended July 1, 2022 would have increased by
approximately $16.4 million.

Foreign Currency Risk

In situations where the Company incurs costs in currencies other than our functional currency, we sometimes enter into foreign exchange
contracts to limit our exposure to fluctuating foreign currencies. We follow the provisions of ASC No. 815, Derivatives and Hedging in accounting for our
derivative contracts. The Company has $186.1 million in notional value of exchange rate sensitive instruments at July 1, 2022. See Note 19 -
Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments for discussion.
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Item 4.    Controls and Procedures.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Disclosure controls and procedures are those controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in
our reports filed or submitted under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) are recorded, processed, summarized and
reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and
procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated
to management, including our Chair and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal financial officer), to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company’s management, with the participation of its Chair and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial
Officer (principal financial officer), evaluated the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as defined by Rule 13a-15(e) of the
Exchange Act defined above, as of July 1, 2022, the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (the “Evaluation Date”). Based on
that evaluation, the Company’s management, with the participation of the Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer) concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures, as of the Evaluation Date, were effective to ensure that
information required to be disclosed by the Company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the
Company’s management, including the Company’s Chair and Chief Executive Officer (principal executive officer) and Chief Financial Officer (principal
financial officer), as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes to our internal control over financial reporting which were identified in connection with the evaluation required by
paragraph (d) of Rules 13a-15 and 15d-15 under the Exchange Act during the quarter ended July 1, 2022 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II - OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1.    Legal Proceedings.

The information required by this Item 1 is included in the Note 19 - Commitments and Contingencies and Derivative Financial Instruments
included in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements appearing under Part I, Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, which is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 1A.    Risk Factors.

Please refer to Item 1A- Risk Factors in our 2021 Form 10-K, which is incorporated herein by reference, for a discussion of some of the factors
that have affected our business, financial condition, and results of operations in the past and which could affect us in the future. There have been no
material changes to those risk factors. Before making an investment decision with respect to our common stock, you should carefully consider those risk
factors, as well as the financial and business disclosures contained in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and our other current and periodic reports filed
with the SEC.

Item 2.     Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

There were no sales of unregistered securities during the third fiscal quarter of 2022.

On February 4, 2022 the Company issued 6,620 shares of restricted stock in connection with its acquisition of Streetlight to certain stockholders
in exchange for certain of their vested stock awards in StreetLight. These shares are subject to certain lockup restrictions agreed to by the Company and
the shareholders. For further discussion of the StreetLight acquisition, see Note 16- Other Business Combinations.

These shares were issued in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”) in reliance upon Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act. The recipients of the securities in each of these transactions represented their intentions to
acquire the securities for investment only and not with a view to or for sale in connection with any distribution thereof, and appropriate legends were
placed upon the share certificates issued in these transactions.

Share Repurchases

On January 16, 2020, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a share repurchase program of up to $1.0 billion of the Company's common
stock, to expire on January 15, 2023 (the "2020 Repurchase Authorization"). A summary of repurchases of the Company’s common stock made during
the third quarter of fiscal 2022 under the share repurchase program is as follows:

Period

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased
Average Price Per

Share (1)

Total Number of Shares
Purchased under the

2020 Repurchase
Authorization

Approximate Dollar Value of
Shares that May Yet Be

Purchased Under the 2020
Repurchase Authorization

April 4, 2022 - April 29, 2022 479,010 $142.68 479,010 $664,578,582
May 2, 2022 - May 27, 2022 980,105 $135.05 980,105 $532,213,425

Our share repurchase program does not obligate the Company to purchase any shares. Share repurchases may be executed through various
means including, without limitation, accelerated share repurchases, open market transactions, privately negotiated transactions, purchases pursuant to
Rule 10b5-1 plans or otherwise. The authorization for the share repurchase programs may be terminated, increased or decreased by the Company’s
Board of Directors in its discretion at any time. The timing, amount and manner of share repurchases may depend upon market conditions and economic
circumstances, availability of investment opportunities, the availability and costs of financing, currency fluctuations, the market price of the Company's
common stock, other uses of capital and other factors.

Item 3.    Defaults Upon Senior Securities

None.

(1) Includes commissions paid and calculated at the average price per share

Page 56



Item 4.     Mine Safety Disclosure.

None.

Item 5.     Other Information.

None.
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Item 6.     Exhibits.

 31.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
 31.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
 32.1* Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
 32.2* Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of

the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101 The following financial statements from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1,

2022, formatted in Inline XBRL: (i) Consolidated Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements of Earnings, (iii)
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss), (iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity,
(v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, tagged as blocks
of text and including detailed tags

104 The cover page from the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1, 2022, (formatted
as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101).

* Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

JACOBS ENGINEERING GROUP INC.

By: /s/ Kevin C. Berryman
Kevin C. Berryman
President
and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

Date: August 1, 2022
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Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Steven J. Demetriou, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1, 2022 of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/Steven J. Demetriou
Steven J. Demetriou
Chief Executive Officer
 
August 1, 2022



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Kevin C. Berryman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1, 2022 of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed
under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is
made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be
designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s/Kevin C. Berryman
Kevin C. Berryman
Chief Financial Officer
 
August 1, 2022



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1,
2022 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Steven J. Demetriou, Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (principal executive officer), certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002, that: (1) the Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information
contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/Steven J. Demetriou
Steven J. Demetriou
Chief Executive Officer
 
August 1, 2022

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350

Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Jacobs Engineering Group Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 1,
2022 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Kevin C. Berryman, Chief Financial Officer of the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: (1) the Report fully
complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and (2) the information contained in the Report fairly
presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/Kevin C. Berryman
Kevin C. Berryman
President
and Chief Financial Officer
 
August 1, 2022

A signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the
Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission or its staff upon request.


